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The following is a Company Announcement issued by HUDSON MALTA P.L.C, a
company registered under the laws of Malta with company registration number C 83425
(hereinafter the ‘Company’), pursuant to the Listing Rules issued by the Listing Authority.

Quote

Publication of Financial Analysis Summary 2019 and HHL Financial Statements

The Company hereby announces that the 2019 Financial Analysis Summary dated 28"
June 2019 is attached hereto and is also available for viewing and download on the
Hudson Group's website: https://hudson.com.mt/investor-relations/.

The Company further announces that the Annual Report and Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of Hudson Holdings Limited (C 37866) [hereinafter ‘HHL'] for the
period ended 315t December 2018 have been approved on the 28™ June 2019 by the
Board of directors and by the shareholders of HHL in terms of the company’s articles of
association. HHL is the ultimate parent company of the Hudson Group.

Pursuant to a commitment made by the Board of directors of HHL as set out in the
Prospectus dated 23 March 2018, a copy of HHL's afore-mentioned Financial
Statements is attached hereto and is also available for viewing and download on the
Hudson Group’s website: https://hudson.com.mt/investor-relations/.

Unquote

Dr Luca Vella
Company Secretary
30" June 2019
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Hudson Malta p.l.c.

Hudson House

Burmarrad Road, Burmarrad
St Paul’s Bay SPB 9060
Malta

28 June 2019
Dear Sirs
Hudson Malta p.l.c. Financial Analysis Summary

In accordance with your instructions, and in line with the requirements of the Listing Authority
Policies, we have compiled the Financial Analysis Summary (“Analysis”) set out on the following
pages and which is being forwarded to you together with this letter.

The purpose of the financial analysis is that of summarising key financial data appertaining to
Hudson Holdings Limited (the “Hudson Group” or “HHL”), Hudson Malta p.l.c. (the “Company”,
“Issuer” or “Malta Group”), and Time International (Sport) Limited and Hudson International
Company Limited (the “Guarantors”). The data is derived from various sources or is based on our
own computations as follows:

(a)  Historical financial data for the year ended 31 December 2016 to 31 December 2018 has been
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements of HHL, the combined financial
statements of the Guarantors and the audited financial statements of Hudson Malta p.l.c. for
the three years in question.

(b)  The forecast data of the Group for the year ending 31 December 2019 has been provided by
management of the Company.

(c)  Our commentary on the results of the Hudson Group, Malta Group and on their respective
financial position is based on the explanations provided by the Company.

(d)  The ratios quoted in the Financial Analysis Summary have been computed by us applying the
definitions set out in Part 4 of the Analysis.
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(e)  Relevant financial data in respect of the companies included in Part 3 has been extracted from
public sources such as websites of the companies concerned, financial statements filed with
the Registrar of Companies or websites providing financial data.

The Analysis is meant to assist investors in the Company’s securities and potential investors by
summarising the more important financial data of the Hudson Group and Malta Group. The Analysis
does not contain all data that is relevant to investors or potential investors. The Analysis does not
constitute an endorsement by our firm of any securities of the Company and should not be
interpreted as a recommendation to invest in any of the Company’s securities. We shall not accept
any liability for any loss or damage arising out of the use of the Analysis. As with all investments,
potential investors are encouraged to seek professional advice before investing in the Company’s
securities.

Yours faithfully,

Evan Mohnani
Head — Corporate Finance

CHARTS - a division of MeDirect Bank (Malta) plc
The Centre, Tigné Point, Sliema TPO 0001 - Tel: 2557 4400
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PART 1 — INFORMATION ABOUT THE HUDSON GROUP
AND THE MALTA GROUP

THE HUDSON GROUP

AN OVERVIEW

The Hudson Group is involved in the retail and distribution of branded fashion and sportswear in
Malta, Europe and Africa. Central operations are based in Malta and include logistics and supply
chain, human resources, financial reporting, business support and leadership team. Some of the key
brands presently managed by the Hudson Group are Nike, New Look, Tommy Hilfiger and KIABI, most
of which are subject to franchise or distribution agreements which have been in effect for a
significant number of years and which, to date, have been automatically renewed by the respective
franchisors — the indication is that such pattern will carry on in the foreseeable future. In terms of an
agreement dated 5 March 2018 between HHL and the Issuer, all business activity carried out in Malta
relating to sports and fashion business where HHL acts as franchisee, shall be performed exclusively
through the Issuer or any of the Guarantors.

The timeline below illustrates the accumulation of international brands represented by the Hudson
Group since incorporation in 2006.

2006 Nike (Malta), Converse (Malta), Urban Jungle (Malta), Nike (Libya), Nike (Algeria - Manager),
Urban Jungle (Italy)

2007 Timberland (Malta), Crocs (Malta)

2008 Converse (North Africa excluding Egypt)

2010 New Look (Malta)

2011 Nike (Tunisia)

2012 New Look (Libya), Umbro (Malta, North Africa excluding Egypt)

2013 Tommy Hilfiger (Morocco)

2014 KIABI (Malta), River Island (Malta), Urban Jungle (Spain)

2015 Urban Jungle (France, Morocco), Nike (Distribution & Logistics Hub for Africa)
2016 3INA (Malta), Go Sport (Malta), Benetton (Malta)

2017 Extension of Nike Distribution Agreement to cover an additional 26 territories in Africa
2018 MaryPaz (Malta), Sub-franchising of New Look (Tunisia)

2019 Ted Baker (Malta), Alcott (Malta)

WEALTH MANAGEMENT - CORPORATE BROKING
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1.2 ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The diagram hereunder illustrates the organisational structure of the Hudson Group.

Hudson Holdings Limited ]

(Malta)
1 1
I I
100% 1 99.9% 100% 1 100%
I I
Hudson Malta p.l.c. 1 Italian Operations Ul International Co 1 Time International
(Malta) ISSUER | Limited SRL (Italy) Limited (Malta) I Company Limited (Malta)
I I
100% | 100% 1 Hudson Libya UMOS 65%
1 1 Joint Venture SC
Time International | Urban Jungle | Company (Libya)
- (Sport) Limited — Sneakers SL
(Malta) GUARANTOR | (Spain) I 100%
1 1 Sports Alliance Limited
(British Virgin Islands)
100% | 100% 1
I I
N 1 L Times 5 Limited 1 BD International Group 100%
Hudson International . . .
I . (Malta) Limited (British Virgin
Company Limited 1 100% 1 P
(Malta) GUARANTOR | | HETeE)
43.56%
1 Hudson Italia SRL 1
remium Brands
Pi i Brands SPA
(Italy)
| | (Algeria)
! ! 100%
| | Hudson Brand
1 1 Devel Nigeria
1 1 Limited (Nigeria)
| | 100%
1 1 BD International Group
1 1 Limited (Malta)
1 1
unisia
1 1 BD Tunisia SARL
100%
| | (Tunisia)
I I
I I
| | BD Morocco SARL 100%
orocco,
(M )
I I
I I
MALTA PILLAR . EUROPE PILLAR . AFRICA PILLAR

In 2017, the Hudson Group undertook a re-organisation exercise whereby three principal pillars were
formed, comprising the Malta pillar, the Urban Jungle International pillar and the Africa pillar. The
Urban Jungle International pillar was subsequently re-named to Europe pillar so as to comprise the
operation of other brands outside Malta in addition to the Urban Jungle brand.

On 20 December 2017, the Issuer acquired from Hudson Holdings Limited (“HHL”) the entire issued
share capital of each of the Guarantors, in exchange for an issue of new ordinary shares by the Issuer
to HHL, to form the Malta pillar of the Hudson Group (also referred to as the Malta Group).

Since the last published financial analysis report dated 23 March 2018, Premium Brands SPA (Algeria)
and Hudson Brand Development Nigeria Limited (Nigeria) were incorporated, whereby the Group has

WEALTH MANAGEMENT - CORPORATE BROKING
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a 43.56% and 100% shareholding respectively. In addition, Italian Operations Limited Retail SRL (ltaly)
was merged with Italian Operations Limited SRL (ltaly) and Everchase Overseas Limited (Dubai) was
liquidated.

The Issuer is a wholly owned subsidiary of HHL, which in turn is owned by Alfred Borg with 50.2%;
George Amato, Christopher Muscat and Kevin Grech holding 37.2% between them apportioned
equally; 8.8% shareholding is held by Etienne Camenzuli, and Felice llacqua and Gianluca Salute hold
1.9% each.

On 7 March 2019, BD International Group Limited (C 61540) (a wholly owned subsidiary of HHL)
signed a 65-year emphyteutical concession with Malta Industrial Parks Limited, pursuant to which BD
International Group Limited has been granted by title of temporary emphyteusis a portion of land
situated in the Hal Far Industrial Estate measuring approximately 5,000m?, together with all buildings
erected thereon. In accordance with a prospectus dated 23 March 2018, an amount of €2,500,000
out of the net proceeds of the bond issue are being utilised to develop the said distribution centre.
Construction and fit-out works are expected to be concluded in 2020.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Hudson Group has formally appointed and empowered an executive committee (EXCO) to manage
the Hudson Group’s operations. The EXCO is a decision-making entity set up to implement the
Board’s strategic business plans and policies consistent with the organisation’s vision, values and
behaviours in order to meet the Hudson Group’s business objectives and targets. The EXCO advises
the Board on decision and business matters such as strategy, policy and investment risk and is
composed of the following individuals: Alfred Borg, Christopher Muscat, Kevin Grech, George Amato
and Martin Gregory.

THE MALTA GROUP

KEY ACTIVITIES OF THE ISSUER

The Issuer was established on 10 November 2017 and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HHL (the
ultimate parent of the Hudson Group), and is the parent company of the Malta operations of the
Hudson Group. The principal object of the Issuer is to purchase or otherwise acquire, under any title
whatsoever, to hold and manage, by any title, movable and immovable property or other assets,
including but not limited to securities and other financial interests. The issue of bonds falls within the
objects of the Issuer.

The Issuer’s intended purpose is to further expand the Malta Group's retail and wholesale
distribution operations in Malta of branded fashion and sportswear. Business operations are
performed by the Issuer’s Subsidiaries (also referred to as the Guarantors), and therefore the Issuer
is mainly dependent on the business prospects of the Guarantors.
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KEY ACTIVITIES OF THE GUARANTORS

Time International (Sport) Limited

Time International (Sport) Limited (“TISL”) was established in 2003 and is principally engaged in the
distribution and retailing of sportswear. The company currently operates 12 retail stores operating
under various names in Malta and Gozo and franchises an additional 3 stores locally. The flagship
brand operated by the company is Nike, the largest brand of athletic footwear and apparel globally.
TISL also operates and franchises two multi-brand franchise concepts that are owned by Hudson
Group, namely House of Sport and Urban Jungle. In 2016, TISL introduced the Go Sport brand in
Malta with the opening of a store in Qormi. Go Sport is a sports multi-specialist that offers a vast
range of branded sports apparel and accessories. TISL also sells NIKE product to the Urban Jungle
stores operating in Europe. TISL is empowered in terms of its Memorandum of Association to secure
and guarantee any debt, liability or obligation of any third party.

Hudson International Company Limited

Hudson International Company Limited (“HICL”) was established in 2010 and is primarily involved in
the importation and retailing of branded fashion wear in Malta. The company currently operates 15
stores in Malta and Gozo and franchises 3 stores, 2 locally and 1 in Tunisia. The most significant
brands operated by HICL are Kiabi, New Look, Ted Baker and River Island. Hudson International
Company Limited is empowered in terms of its Memorandum of Association to secure and guarantee
any debt, liability or obligation of any third party.

DIRECTORS
Directors of the Issuer

The Issuer is managed by a Board consisting of seven directors entrusted with the overall direction
and management of the Company.

George Amato Executive Director
Alfred Borg Executive Director
Kevin Grech Executive Director
Christopher Muscat Executive Director
Victor Spiteri Independent Non-Executive Director
Kevin Valenzia Independent Non-Executive Director
Brian Zarb Adami Independent Non-Executive Director
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Directors of the Guarantors
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Each Guarantor is managed by a Board of Directors entrusted with its overall direction and

management, and is composed as follows:
Time International (Sport) Limited

Alfred Borg
Kevin Grech

Felice llacqua
Hudson International Company Limited
Alfred Borg

Kevin Grech

Ritianne Grech

Executive Director
Executive Director

Executive Director

Executive Director
Executive Director

Executive Director
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OVERVIEW OF LEASED STORES AND THIRD PARTY OPERATED STORES

The Malta Group presently operates 27 retail stores (FY2018: 26 stores; FY2017: 25 stores) and held
franchise agreements (operated under third party management) with an additional 4 stores (FY2018:
5 stores; FY2017: 6 stores). A description of stores in operation as at the date of this report is
provided in the following table:

X Rentable X
Company Name of Store Location ». Opening Date Comments
Area (m?)

1 TISL Shoeshack The Point, Sliema 13 Prior to 2014 This shop is open in spring and summer only.

2 TISL House of Sport  Fgura 120 Prior to 2014

3 TISL House of Sport  Sliema 188 Prior to 2014

4 TISL Urban Jungle The Point, Sliema 200 Prior to 2014

5 TISL Outta Kontrol Mriehel 191 Prior to 2014

6 TISL Nike The Point, Sliema 350 Prior to 2014 Shop size has increased from 164sqm.

7 HICL New Look Gozo 510 Prior to 2014

8 HICL New Look Fgura 579 Prior to 2014

9 HICL New Look The Point, Sliema 1,050 Prior to 2014

10 HICL KIABI Qormi 1,234 Mar-14 Shop size reduced from 1300sqm to include
Marypaz Qormi (#22 below).

11  HICL RiverIsland The Point, Sliema 250 May-14 Shop size reduced from 600sqm.

12 TISL Shoeshack Sliema 84 Dec-14

13 TISL UJ & Timberland Valletta 100 Jun-15 Change in concept to UJ & Timberland (August
2018).

14 HICL New Look Valletta 676 Oct-15

15 HICL KIABI Burmarrad 1,000 Apr-16

16 TISL Go Sport Qormi 1,100 Sep-16 Shop size reduced from 1600sgm to include
Alcott (#26 below).

17 TISL Urban Jungle PAMA, Mosta 123 Oct-16

18 HICL 3INA PAMA, Mosta 32 Oct-16

19 HICL Benetton PAMA, Mosta 320 Oct-16

20 TISL Go Sport Expert Burmarrad 300 Jun-17

21  HICL Benetton The Point, Sliema 275 Mar-18

22 HICL MaryPaz Qormi 100 Nov-18 New outlet (see #10 above and replaced 3INA).

23 HICL Benetton Gozo 200 Mar-17 Previouslya franchised store and taken overas
atlJanuary 2018.

24  HICL Ted Baker The Point, Sliema 180 Feb-19 New outlet.

25 HICL Riverlsland Baystreet, StJulians 180 Feb-19 New outlet.

26 HICL Alcott Qormi 500 Mar-19 New as from March 2019.

27 TISL House of St. Julians 195 Mar-19 Previously House of Sport and UJ franchised

Sport/UJ stores and taken over from May 2019.

FRANCHISED STORES H

1 TISL House of Sport  Valletta 150 Prior to 2014

2 TISL House of Sport  Gozo 100 Prior to 2014

3 TISL Timberland Sliema 100 Prior to 2014

4 HICL New Look Tunisia 400 Jun-18

TISL - Time International (Sport) Limited; HICL - Hudson International Company Limited.
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MARKET OVERVIEW

Data in relation to the size of the apparel market in Malta is not published. Notwithstanding, an
estimate of the retail store market has been derived from data obtained from the National Statistics
Office of Malta (the latest available information relates to calendar year 2017). Data with respect to
online sales generated in Malta is not available and therefore is excluded from the analysis below.

The table below sets out statistics in relation to sales of apparel (excluding textiles, footwear and
leather goods) by retail outlets in Malta. The information has been analysed by size of outlet on the
basis of the number of staff employed by a retail store.

Turnover of Apparel Retail Stores in Malta

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2008-17
0-9 employees

Total turnover (€'million) 69 63 52 54 59 56 60 63 71 62 -1.2%
No. of outlets (units) 703 704 666 673 674 655 670 628 674 655
Average turnover (€'million) 0.10 0.09 0.08 0.08 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.10 0.11 0.09
Year-on-year growth -9% -13% 2% 10% -2% 3% 13% 5% -10%

10-49 employees

Total turnover (€'million) 40 33 50 51 45 48 42 47 47 44 1.1%
No. of outlets (units) 19 17 28 29 29 28 26 33 33 32
Average turnover (€'million) 2.11 1.92 1.77 1.76 1.56 1.71 1.63 143 142 1.39
Year-on-year growth -9% -8% -1% -11% 9% -4% -12% -1% -2%

50-249 employees

Total turnover (€'million) 51 63 68 64 78 81 91 113 121 137 11.6%
No. of outlets (units) 8 11 12 13 14 14 14 15 15 16
Average turnover (€'million) 6.38 5.69 5.64 4.92 5.55 5.78 6.52 7.54 8.09 8.54
Year-on-year growth -11% -1% -13% 13% 4% 13% 16% 7% 6%
Total Turnover (€'million) 160 159 169 169 182 185 193 224 239 243 4.7%
Year-on-year growth -1% 7% 0% 8% 2% 5% 16% 7% 2%

Source: National Statistics Office Malta (NACE47.71 data)
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Chart I: Retail Apparel Market in Malta
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During 2008 to 2017, the average total number of outlets remained relatively unchanged at circa 711
units. During 2017, the total number of outlets decreased to 703 units compared to 722 units in
2016. This drop has been recorded in the small stores category (0-9 employees), whereas the other
categories remained unchanged.

Furthermore, consumer spending has also changed and shows a preference towards the larger
stores. In fact, in the period 2008 to 2017, smaller outlets registered a compounded annual decrease
in turnover of 1.2%, while the larger outlets recorded a compounded annual growth rate in turnover
of 11.6%.

Chart Il: Retail Trade (2010 = 100)
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Chart Il above provides an indication of the trend in performance of the overall retail sector in Malta
as compared to the European Union (2010 being the base year = 100). According to the EU trend line
above, retail trade increased at a steady pace till early 2008, which was followed by a decline that
lasted until mid-2013. Thereafter, the EU retail sector experienced a constant rate of growth and has
now reached a level of 8 percentage points above the pre-financial crisis high (Q1 2008).

During the 17 years under review, retail activity in Malta increased by almost 22 percentage points
and since Q4 2016 has performed better than the EU average. Further analysis shows that between
the years 2004 and 2009, the Maltese retail sector lagged behind the EU average. Post 2009, retail
sales generated in Malta recovered to some extent while the EU average reflected lower activity
levels. From 2010 to 2016, the Maltese retail sector maintained a similar trajectory when compared
to the EU average.

TREND ANALYSIS AND BUSINESS STRATEGY

The retail market in Malta is subject to stiff competition, both from local retailers as well as from
online sales (through the internet). In addition, retailers face competition for consumers’ disposable
income from gastronomy outlets, the property market and consumers’ propensity to save.
Furthermore, the retail industry continues to evolve due to shifts in consumer preferences, product
trends and shopping habits. Malta’s economy has continued to perform well, resulting in an
expansion of the labour market and higher income levels, to the benefit of retailers. In this regard,
the Malta Group remains focused on adapting to the afore-mentioned trends and the Directors feel
that the business strategy of the Malta Group is aligned to capitalise on these opportunities in the
future.

The Malta Group’s strong focus is to provide a high level of customer service and use information
systems to maintain tight controls over inventory and operating costs. The Directors believe that
having strong logistics support is a critical element of the Malta Group’s growth strategy and is
central to the business to maintain a low cost operating structure and optimal inventory levels.

A key objective of the Malta Group is to continue to strengthen recognition of each of its brands
within their respective target markets through advertising campaigns, sponsorships and customer
loyalty schemes. At the same time, the Directors will continue to explore opportunities to invest in
other retail concepts that offer features that are attractive to the Malta Group in terms of benefits
from possible synergies and revenue expansion.

Additionally, the Malta Group plans to launch an e-commerce platform in the near future, thus
enabling the Malta Group to engage with customers specifically in the digital commerce channel.
Although revenue generation through retail stores will continue to be a cornerstone of the Malta
Group’s strategy, the e-commerce initiative will provide a platform to ensure an outstanding
customer experience regardless of channel.
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PART 2 — PERFORMANCE REVIEW

FINANCIAL INFORMATION - HUDSON GROUP

On 13 March 2018, the Issuer entered into a loan agreement with HHL, where the Issuer advanced to
HHL the amount of €4,500,000 from the net proceeds of the bond issue. In terms of this loan
agreement, interest shall be payable annually in arrears on 6 March of each year at the rate of 5.5%
per annum. In addition, HHL has bound itself to repay the loan in accordance with a pre-agreed
repayment schedule, which includes a 3-year moratorium period, and shall effect the final
repayment by not later than 6 March 2026.

As an entity external to the Issuer and the Malta Group, HHL is not bound by the continuing
obligations of the Listing Rules. However, the board of directors of HHL has resolved to publish on an
annual basis HHL's audited consolidated financial statements, by not later than two months after the
publication of the Issuer’s audited financial statements, through a company announcement.
Furthermore, condensed financial information relating to HHL and the Hudson Group shall be
provided in the annual publication of the Issuer’s financial analysis summary. This commitment is
being made so as to provide Bondholders and prospective investors with full access to financial
information on the Hudson Group.

The tables and discussion included below contain certain alternative performance measures (as
defined by the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA)), including EBIT and EBITDA, that
the Hudson Group’s management and other competitors in the industry use. These non-IFRS financial
measures are presented as supplemental information as (i) they represent measures that the
Directors believe may be relevant for certain investors, securities analysts and other parties in
assessing the Hudson Group’s operating and financial performance and may contribute to a fuller
understanding of the Hudson Group’s cash generation capacity and the growth of its business; and (ii)
they may be used by the Hudson Group’s management as a basis for strategic planning and
forecasting.

The following financial information is extracted from the consolidated audited financial statements
of Hudson Holdings Limited (“Hudson Group” or “HHL”) for the three years ended 31 December
2016 to 31 December 2018.
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Hudson Group

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2016 2017 2018
€000 €000 €000
Actual Actual Actual
Revenue 58,759 86,513 105,029
Retail 23,788 29,833 40,687
Wholesale 34,971 56,680 64,342
Cost of sales (42,391) (65,724) (78,932)
Gross profit 16,368 20,789 26,097
Net operating costs (13,685) (16,517) (21,293)
EBITDA 2,683 4,272 4,804
Depreciation & amortisation (949) (1,156) (1,446)
EBIT? 1,734 3,116 3,358
Share of loss in associate - - (41)
Net finance costs (375) (756) (956)
Profit before tax 1,359 2,360 2,361
Taxation (548) (809) (1,381)
Profit/(loss) for the year 811 1,551 980

Other comprehensive income

Currency translation differences 183 (749) 375

Fair value movements equity investments, net of

deferred tax 721 401 (244)
904 (348) 131

Total comprehensive income 1,715 1,203 1,111

"EBITDA - Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation.

2EBIT- Earnings before Interest and Tax.

Hudson Group

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2016 2017 2018
€’000 €000 €000
Actual Actual Actual
Net cash from operating activities 2,271 (4,333) (537)
Net cash from investing activities (2,429) (1,247) (3,802)
Net cash from financing activities 218 6,547 8,950
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents 60 967 4,611
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,016 3,076 4,066
Exchange differences on cash balances - 23 (69)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3,076 4,066 8,608
ZCHARTS

A division of MeDirect Bank (Malta) plc
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Hudson Group

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2016 2017 2018
€000 €000 €000
Actual Actual Actual
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 1,278 1,258 1,263
Property, plant & equipment 4,570 4,658 6,500
Investment in associates - - 285
Equity investments at FVTOCI - - 1,500
Available for sale investments 1,200 1,800 -
Receivables 662 1,081 499
Deferred tax assets 371 449 394
8,081 9,246 10,441
Current assets
Inventories 15,822 19,043 19,387
Trade and other receivables 11,367 12,579 17,888
Other current assets 201 216 19
Cash and cash equivalents 4,952 6,166 8,907
32,342 38,004 46,201
Total assets 40,423 47,250 56,642
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Share capital 67 85 85
Reserves 2,456 3,658 3,031
Retained earnings 4,712 6,275 6,477
Non-controlling interest 1,552 388 (167)
8,787 10,406 9,426
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 2,752 2,009 12,166
Other non-current liabilities 1,388 1,353 1,238
4,140 3,362 13,404
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts 1,876 2,100 299
Borrowings 2,126 9,001 8,194
Trade and other payables 23,162 21,923 24,482
Other current liabilities 332 458 837
27,496 33,482 33,812
31,636 36,844 47,216
Total equity and liabilities 40,423 47,250 56,642
ZCHARTS

A division of MeDirect Bank (Malta) plc
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Hudson Group

Key Accounting Ratios FY2016 FY2017 FY2018
Actual Actual Actual

Gross profit margin 28% 24% 25%

(Gross profit/revenue)

Operating profit margin 5% 5% 5%

(EBITDA/revenue)

Interest cover (times) 7.15 5.65 5.03

(EBITDA/net finance cost)

Net profit margin 1% 2% 1%
(Profit after tax/revenue)

Earnings per share (€) 28.21 42.45 26.82
(Profit after tax/number of shares)

Return on equity 9% 15% 10%
(Profit after tax/shareholders’ equity)

Return on capital employed 21% 31% 21%
(EBITDA/total assets less current liabilities)

Return on assets 2% 3% 2%
(Profit after tax/total assets)

Liquidity ratio (times) 1.18 1.14 1.37
(Current assets/current liabilities)

Gearingratio 17% 40% 55%
(Total net debt/net debt and shareholders’ equity)

Source: Charts | ADivision of MeDirect Bank (Malta) plc

During FY2018, the Hudson Group operated 53 stores in 5 countries (FY2017: 37 stores) and
employed 544 staff members (FY2017: 502 staff members). The 16 new store openings in FY2018 are
located overseas, mainly Morocco. In addition, the Hudson Group acquired the remaining 50%
shareholding in BD International Group Limited and now holds all voting and ownership rights. This
company is the contract party to the NIKE Africa business having distribution rights to 30 countries in
Africa.

In FY2018, revenue increased by 21% from €86.5 million in FY2017 to €105.0 million driven by new
store openings and the further expansion of the Nike Africa business (notwithstanding the loss of a
significant client in 2017). The growth in turnover resulted in an increase in EBITDA of €0.5 million,
from €4.3 million in FY2017 to €4.8 million in FY2018. The EBITDA margin remained constant at 5% in
FY2018 (FY2017: 5%). In 2018, depreciation & amortisation and taxation were higher when
compared to the prior year by €0.3 million and €0.6 million respectively. After factoring in positive
currency translation differences of €0.4 million (FY2017: adverse amount of €0.7 million) and a loss in
fair value movements on equity investments of €0.2 million (FY2017: gain of €0.4 million), total
comprehensive income amounted to €1.1 million in FY2018 (FY2017: €1.2 million).

WEALTH MANAGEMEN

ZCHARTS

A division of MeDirect Bank (Malta) plc
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION — MALTA GROUP

The historical financial information included hereinafter is extracted from the audited combined
financial statements of the Guarantors for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 (together, the
“Combined Financial Statements”). The Guarantors were acquired by the Issuer in Q4 2017 and as
such, did not operate as a separate group of entities during 2016. Combined financial statements
serve a similar purpose to consolidated financial statements, to present financial data appertaining
to a group of companies as if the companies concerned constitute a single enterprise as at the date
of the combined financial statements.

The Malta Group in its current state has been in existence since 10 November 2017 and therefore,
the financial information for FY2017 represents pro forma forecast consolidated financial
statements. This pro forma information presents what the Issuer’s forecast consolidated financial
statements would have looked like had the Malta Group existed in its current form, comprising all its
current constituent components, for the financial year 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017. No
adjustments to the results, financial position and cash flow statements of the constituent sub-groups
were necessary for the purposes of arriving at the pro forma consolidated financial statements
except solely to reflect the entries necessary in any process of accounting consolidation.

The financial information relating to the Issuer for the period 10 November 2017 to 31 December
2018 is extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements of Hudson Malta p.l.c.

The projected financial information for FY2019 relates to events in the future and is based on
assumptions which the Malta Group believes to be reasonable. Consequently, the actual outcome
may be adversely affected by unforeseen situations and the variation between forecast and actual
results may be material.

The tables and discussion included below contain certain alternative performance measures (as
defined by the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA)), including EBIT and EBITDA, that
the Malta Group’s management and other competitors in the industry use. These non-IFRS financial
measures are presented as supplemental information as (i) they represent measures that the
Directors believe may be relevant for certain investors, securities analysts and other parties in
assessing the Malta Group’s operating and financial performance and may contribute to a fuller
understanding of the Malta Group’s cash generation capacity and the growth of the combined
business; and (ii) they may be used by the Malta Group’s management as a basis for strategic
planning and forecasting.

WEALTH MANAGEM
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Hudson Malta p.l.c.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2016 2017 2018 2019
Combined Pro forma Actual Forecast

€000 €000 €000 €000

Revenue 34,409 35,549 42,414 42,438
Retail 21,913 24,843 29,682 31,249
Wholesale and other income 12,496 10,706 12,732 11,189
Costofsales (23,536) (23,340) (29,303) (27,937)
Gross profit 10,873 12,209 13,111 14,501
Net operating costs (8,587) (9,823) (10,280) (9,745)
EBITDA' 2,286 2,386 2,831 4,756
Depreciation & amortisation (629) (922) (755) (3,271)
EBIT’ 1,657 1,464 2,076 1,485
Net finance costs (122) (61) (206) (1,118)
Profit before tax 1,535 1,403 1,870 367
Taxation (636) (491) (702) (128)
Profit for the year 899 912 1,168 239
Total comprehensive income 899 912 1,168 239

"EBITDA- Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation.

2EBIT- Earnings before Interest and Tax.

Note: Adoption of IFRS 16 as from 1 January 2019

The Malta Group adopted IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 using the Standard’s modified retrospective
approach with transition date taken as the lease commencement date. Under this approach, the
right-of-use asset equals the lease liability on transition date, and no equity adjustment will be
recognised on initial application of IFRS 16. Comparative information is not restated. Accordingly, as
of FY2019, the Malta Group will need to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability in the
statement of financial position for the lease of premises currently treated as operating leases. With
regard to the impact in the consolidated income statement, the nature of the relevant expense will
change from being an operating lease expense to depreciation and interest expense.

In terms of the above, the statement of comprehensive income for the projected financial year 2019
reflects an increase in right-of-use amortisation (accounted for in depreciation & amortisation) of
€2.3 million and a decrease in rent (in net operating costs) of approximately the same amount, and
an increase in right-of-use interest (in net finance costs) of €0.9 million. In the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, property, plant & equipment is projected to increase with the
right-of-use assets amounting to €17.8 million and non-current liabilities are expected to increase by
€18.7 million.

WEALTH MANAGEMENT  CORPORATE BROY
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Hudson Malta p.l.c.
Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2016 2017 2018 2019
Combined Pro forma Actual Forecast
€000 €000 €000 €000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets - - 1,207 1,207
Property, plant & equipment 2,890 2,306 2,470 21,429
Other non-current assets 2,472 2,296 547 547
Loan to related undertakings - - 6,914 6,914
5,362 4,602 11,138 30,097

Current assets

Inventories 3,958 4,415 4,126 5,169

Trade and other receivables 3,742 3,845 10,560 4,576

Amounts due from related undertakings 1,047 3,012 58 5,754

Other current assets 151 87 - -

Cash and cash equivalents 2,117 1,127 2,284 2,057

11,015 12,486 17,028 17,556

Total assets 16,377 17,088 28,166 47,654

EQUITY

Capital and reserves

Share capital and reserves 204 4,148 16,450 16,450

Other reserves - - (15,995) (15,995)

Retained earnings 3,815 1,686 5,680 5,919
4,019 5,834 6,135 6,374

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings and bonds 1,764 188 11,793 11,793

Other non-current liabilities - - - 18,751
1,764 188 11,793 30,544

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts 1,465 1,687 130 130
Borrowings 581 1,828 - -
Trade and other payables 8,216 7,177 9,958 10,456
Other current liabilities 332 374 150 150
10,594 11,066 10,238 10,736
12,358 11,254 22,031 41,280
Total equity and liabilities 16,377 17,088 28,166 47,654
ZCHARTS
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Hudson Malta p.l.c.

Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2016 2017 2018 2019
Combined Pro forma Actual Forecast
€000 €000 €000 €000
Net cash from operating activities 1,611 195 109 197
Net cash from investing activities (1,205) (258) (5,463) (425)
Net cash from financing activities 288 (1,149) 8,068 -
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents 694 (1,212) 2,714 (228)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (42) 652 (560) 2,154
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 652 (560) 2,154 1,926

Hudson Malta p.l.c.

Key Accounting Ratios FY2016 FY2017 FP2018 FY2019
Combined Pro forma Actual Forecast
Gross profit margin 32% 34% 31% 34%

(Gross profit/revenue)

Operating profit margin 7% 7% 7% 11%
(EBITDA /revenue)
Interest cover (times) 18.74 39.11 13.74 4.26

(EBITDA/net finance cost)

Net profit margin 3% 3% 3% 1%

(Profit after tax/revenue)

Earnings per share (€) 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.01

(Profit after tax/number of shares)

Return on equity 22% 16% 19% 4%
(Profit after tax/shareholders’ equity)

Return on capital employed 40% 40% 16% 13%
(EBITDA/total assets less current liabilities)

Return on assets 5% 5% 4% 1%
(Profit after tax/total assets)

Liquidity ratio (times) 1.04 1.13 1.66 1.64

(Current assets/current liabilities)

Gearing ratio 30% 31% 61% 61%
(Total net debt/net debt and shareholders’ equity)

Source: Charts | A Division of MeDirect Bank (Malta) plc

WEALTH MANAGEMENT - CORPORATE BROKING
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The principal business activities of the Guarantors include the operation of retail stores in Malta, and
distribution of Nike products to Urban Jungle Italy and a number of third party stores in Malta.

In FY2016, revenue generated from retail operations increased by €5.6 million (+34%) from €16.4
million in FY2015 to €21.9 million, primarily on account of new store openings, whilst wholesale
income amounted to €12.5 million, an increase of €2.6 million (+27%) when compared to a year
earlier. In aggregate, revenue in FY2016 was higher than in FY2015 by €8.2 million (+31%) and
amounted to €34.4 million.

EBITDA improved by 21% or €0.4 million (year-on-year) to €2.3 million in FY2016 (FY2015: €1.9
million). Profit before tax also reflected a year-on-year increase of 21% to €1.5 million (similar to
EBITDA) given that depreciation charge and net finance costs were relatively stable in FY2016 when
compared to the prior year. In contrast, profit after tax was marginally lower in FY2016 by €0.1
million to €0.9 million as a result of an increase in taxation of €0.37 million (from €0.27 million in
FY2015 to €0.64 million in FY2016).

On a pro forma basis, revenue generated in FY2017 amounted to €35.5 million, split as to 70% from
retail stores and the remaining balance from wholesale revenue (primarily relating to the sale of
sports retail products to third party retailers in Malta and Urban Jungle franchisees in Italy). When
compared to the prior year, retail revenue increased by €2.9 million (+13%), principally due to the
impact of a full year’s operating performance of 8 stores which commenced operations during 2016
and the opening of 4 new stores (two of which are franchised stores) in 2017, whilst wholesale
revenue decreased from €12.3 million in 2016 to €10.7 million, entirely due to a decline in sales to
Urban Jungle Italy.

EBITDA in FY2017 amounted to €2.4 million, marginally higher when compared to the prior year.
After taking into account depreciation & amortisation of €0.9 million, which increased by 47% (year-
on-year) due to an increase in store openings, EBIT amounted to €1.5 million (FY2016: €1.7 million).
Profit for the year remained broadly unchanged at €0.9 million (FY2016: €0.9 million).

In FP2018, revenue generated from retail operations increased by €4.8 million (+19%) from €24.8
million in pro forma FY2017 to €29.7 million in FP2018, primarily on account of new store openings,
whilst wholesale income amounted to €12.7 million, an increase of €2.0 million (+19%) when
compared to pro forma FY2017. In aggregate, revenue in FP2018 was higher than in pro forma
FY2017 by €6.7 million (+19%) and amounted to €42.4 million.

EBITDA improved by 19% or €0.4 million to €2.8 million in FP2018 (FY2017: €2.4 million). Profit after
tax was higher in FP2018 by €0.3 million, when compared to the prior year, to €1.2 million.

The Malta Group’s statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018 comprised total assets of
€28.2 million, the main items being loans to related undertakings of €6.9 million, inventories
amounting to €4.1 million and trade & other receivables of €10.6 million. Cash and cash equivalents
in FY2018 amounted to €2.3 million.

WEALTH MANAGEM
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Total liabilities amounted to €22.0 million and mainly included borrowings and bonds amounting to
€11.9 million and trade & other payables of €10.0 million. The Issuer’s gearing ratio (being net
debt/net debt and shareholders’ equity) as at 31 December 2018 was 61% (FY2017: 31%).

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement amounted to an inflow of
€2.7 million in FP2018 (FY2017: -€1.2 million), principally due to the net proceeds from the bonds of
€11.8 million, partly set off by repayments made to banks and related parties of €3.7 million. Net
capital used in investing activities amounted to €5.5 million, mainly on account of loans and
receivables granted to related undertakings of €7.0 million, which balance was offset against cash
amounts of TISL and HICL following the business combination to form the Malta Group.

Revenue in FY2019 is projected to remain constant at €42.4 million (FP2018: €42.4 million). Further
analysis shows that retail sales are expected to increase by €1.6 million (y-o0-y) to €31.2 million, while
wholesale & other income is projected to decline by the same amount to €11.1 million. EBITDA is
expected to increase by €1.9 million (y-o-y) to €4.8 million, primarily due to the impact of IFRS 16
(explained in further detail on page 16 of this report).

Due to IFRS 16, FY2019 profitability is expected to be adversely impacted by circa €0.9 million and as
such profit for the year is projected to decline from €1.2 million in FY2018 to €0.2 million (an adverse
variance of €0.9 million). Accordingly, excluding the effect of IFRS 16, the expected results for FY2019
should at least match the positive results achieved in FY2018. Beyond FY2019, management expects
the Malta Group to register further growth in its annual results.

WEALTH MANAGEME
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VARIANCE ANALYSIS

Hudson Malta p.l.c. Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2018 2018

Actual Forecast Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue 42,414 37,773 4,641
Retail 29,682 27,012 2,670
Wholesale and other income 12,732 10,761 1,971
Cost of sales (29,303) (24,836) (4,467)
Gross profit 13,111 12,937 174
Net operating costs (10,280) (10,035) (245)
EBITDA® 2,831 2,902 (71)
Depreciation & amortisation (755) (1,130) 375
EBIT 2,076 1,772 304
Net finance costs (206) 23 (229)
Profit before tax 1,870 1,795 75
Taxation (702) (628) (74)
Profit for the year 1,168 1,167 1

As presented in the above table, revenue generated by the Group in FP2018 was higher than
expected by €4.6 million, due to better than expected performances in both the retail and wholesale
& other income divisions of €2.6 million and €2.0 million respectively. EBITDA amounted to €13.1
million as compared to the forecast amount of €12.9 million, an increase of €0.2 million.
Depreciation and amortisation was lower than projected by €0.4 million, whilst net finance costs and
taxation were higher than expected by €0.3 million and €0.1 million respectively. Overall, the Malta
Group’s profit for the year was in line with the forecast and amounted to €1.2 million.

 MANAGEMENT - CORPORATE BROKING
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PART 3 - COMPARABLES

The table below compares the Malta Group and the Issuer’s bond issue to other debt issuers listed
on the Malta Stock Exchange and their respective debt securities. Although there are significant
variances between the activities of the Malta Group and other issuers (including different industries,
principal markets, competition, capital requirements etc.), and material differences between the
risks associated with the Malta Group’s business and that of other issuers, the comparative analysis

HUDSON MALTA PLC FINANCIAL ANALYSIS SUMMARY

provides an indication of the financial performance and strength of the Malta Group.

Comparative Analysis

5.50% Pendergardens Dev. plc Secured € 2020 Series |
6.00% Pendergardens Dev. plc Secured € 2022 Series |l
4.25% Gap Group plc Secured € 2023

5.30% United Finance Plc Unsecured € Bonds 2023
6.00% AX Investments Plc Unsecured € 2024

5.30% Mariner Finance plc Unsecured € 2024

5.00% Hal Mann Vella Group plc Secured Bonds € 2024
4.25% Best Deal Properties Holding plc Secured 2024
5.10% 1923 Investments plc Unsecured € 2024

4.50% Hili Properties plc Unsecured € 2025

5.10% 6PM Holdings plc Unsecured € 2025

4.25% Corinthia Finance plc Unsecured € 2026

4.00% International Hotel Invest. plc Secured € 2026
4.00% International Hotel Invest. plc Unsecured € 2026
4.00% MIDI plc Secured € 2026

3.75% Premier Capital plc € Unsecured Bonds 2026
4.35% Hudson Malta plc Unsecured 2026

4.35% SD Finance plc € Unsecured Bonds 2027

4.00% Eden Finance plc Unsecured 2027

4.00% Stivala Group Finance plc Secured 2027

3.85% Hili Finance Company plc Unsecured 2028

Nominal
Value

(€)

14,711,300
26,921,200
19,931,000

8,500,000
40,000,000
35,000,000
30,000,000
16,000,000
36,000,000
37,000,000
13,000,000
40,000,000
55,000,000
40,000,000
50,000,000
65,000,000
12,000,000
65,000,000
40,000,000
45,000,000
40,000,000

Yield to
Maturity
(%)

3.36
2.60
3.48
4.53
198
4.84
3.35
3.50
441
4.02
4381
391
343
3.63
3.30
3.59
3.86
3.75
3.27
3.32
3.63

Interest
Cover

(times)

1.23
1.23
4.45
1.19
6.97
5.33
2.29
4.02
1.41
1.55
2.09
2.59
3.27
3.27
9.80
12.63
10.08
5.93
5.68
3.73
3.44

Total

Assets
(€'000)

80,052
80,052
55,237
21,625
325,243
83,223
112,006
25,986
120,794
154,742
5,499
1,765,072
1,617,853
1,617,853
220,613
179,451
28,166
229,882
185,717
202,425
455,113

Net Asset

Value
(€'000)

25,712
25,712
9,869
6,916
214,590
44,177
43,514
3,432
38,318
52,242
19,741
901,595
877,620
877,620
97,440
48,701
6,135
63,771
103,511
115,827
86,390

Gearing
Ratio
(%)

48.95
48.95
71.82
62.72
18.66
43.99
51.65
82.64
5241
61.72
40.43
36.63
36.63
31.83
54.42
60.96
50.15
31.82
35.12
73.98

10June'19

Source: Malta Stock Exchange, Audited Accounts of Listed Companies, Charts | A division of MeDirect Bank (Malta) plc
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Malta Government
Stock

Malta Corporate
Bonds

¥ 4.35%Hudson Malta
p.l.c. bond 2026

% Bond Yield to Maturity
5.00
/~ \ A\
4.00
\—I_/
- /\V / \/
2.00
1.00 mm——
/
000 - . : . . . .
-1.00
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Source: Malta Stock Exchange, Central Bank of Malta, Charts | A division of MeDirect Bank (Malta) plc

10 June 2019

To date, there are no corporate bonds which have a redemption date beyond 2031. The Malta
Government Stock yield curve has also been included since it is the benchmark risk-free rate for

Malta.
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PART 4 - EXPLANATORY DEFINITIONS

Income Statement

Revenue

Total revenue generated by the Group from its business activities
during the financial year, including retail and distribution of branded
fashion and sportswear.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes inventory, labour expenses and all other direct
expenses.

EBITDA

EBITDA is an abbreviation for earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation. EBITDA can be used to analyse and
compare profitability between companies and industries because it
eliminates the effects of financing and accounting decisions.

EBIT

Profit after tax

EBIT is an abbreviation for earnings before interest and tax. EBIT is a
measure of a firm's profit that includes all expenses except interest
and income tax expenses. It is the difference between operating
revenues and operating expenses.

Profit after tax is the profit made by the Group during the financial
year both from its operating as well as non-operating activities.

Profitability Ratios

Operating profit margin

Net profit margin

Operating profit margin is operating income or EBITDA as a
percentage of total revenue.

Net profit margin is profit after tax achieved during the financial year
expressed as a percentage of total revenue.

Efficiency Ratios

Return on equity

Return on capital
employed

Return on Assets

Return on equity (ROE) measures the rate of return on the
shareholders’ equity of the owners of issued share capital, computed
by dividing profit after tax by shareholders’ equity.

Return on capital employed (ROCE) indicates the efficiency and
profitability of a company’s capital investments, estimated by
dividing operating profit by capital employed.

Return on assets (ROA) is computed by dividing profit after tax by
total assets.

WEALTH MANAGEMEN
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Equity Ratios

Earnings per share

Earnings per share (EPS) is the amount of earnings per outstanding
share of a company’s share capital. It is computed by dividing net
income available to equity shareholders by total shares outstanding
as at balance sheet date.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow from operating
activities

Cash generated from the principal revenue-producing activities of
the Group.

Cash flow from investing
activities

Cash generated from activities dealing with the acquisition and
disposal of long-term assets and other investments of the Group.

Cash flow from financing
activities

Cash generated from the activities that result in change in share
capital and borrowings of the Group.

Balance Sheet

Non-current assets

Non-current asset are the Group’s long-term investments, which full
value will not be realised within the accounting year. Non-current
assets are capitalised rather than expensed, meaning that the Group
allocates the cost of the asset over the number of years for which
the asset will be in use, instead of allocating the entire cost to the
accounting year in which the asset was purchased. Such assets
include intangible assets; property, plant & equipment; and loans
receivable.

Current assets

Current assets are all assets of the Group, which are realisable within
one year from the balance sheet date. Such amounts include
accounts receivable, inventory, and cash and bank balances.

Current liabilities

Net debt

Non-current liabilities

Total equity

All liabilities payable by the Group within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, and include accounts payable and short-term
debt.

Borrowings before unamortised issue costs less cash and cash
equivalents.

The Group’s long-term financial obligations that are not due within
the present accounting year. The Group’s non-current liabilities
include long-term borrowings, bonds and deferred taxation.

Total equity includes share capital, reserves & other equity
components, retained earnings and minority interest.

WEALTH MANAGEM
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Financial Strength Ratios

Liquidity ratio The liquidity ratio (also known as current ratio) is a financial ratio
that measures whether or not a company has enough resources to
pay its debts over the next 12 months. It compares a company’s
current assets to its current liabilities.

Interest cover The interest coverage ratio is calculated by dividing a company’s
EBITDA of one period by the company’s interest expense of the same
period.

Gearing ratio The gearing ratio indicates the relative proportion of shareholders’

equity and debt used to finance a company’s assets, and is calculated
by dividing a company’s net debt by net debt plus shareholders’
equity.

WEALTH MANAGEMENT - CORPORATE BROKI

ZCHARTS

A division of MeDirect Bank (Malta) plc
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report of Hudson Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and the Group of which it is
the parent for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal activities

The Company owns a number of investments in subsidiary companies involved in the retail and distribution
of branded consumer products in Malta and internationally (as detailed in Note 6 to the financial statements).
The Company carries out the central management function through which it furthers the business of the
Group.

Review of the business development and financial position
Group resulis
The year under review was characterised by the foliowing key developments:

1. In May 2018, the Group successfully launched a €12 million Bond on the local market through a new
subsidiary company, Hudson Matlta plc. The proceeds from the Bond were used to partially repay the
Group’s bank loans as well as finance retail expansions. A portion of the funds were earmarked for the
development of a new enlargened distribution centre to cater for the Africa distribution business which
is currently under construction.

2. The Group continued its expansion into the retail sector through the opening of sixteen (16) new stores,
most of which are located overseas, mainly in Morocco. These new openings helped drive increased
revenues and contribution from the retail business. At the end of FY 2018, the Hudson Group operated
53 stores in 5 countries (FY 2017: 37 stores).

3. The acquisition of the 50% of the ownership interest held in BD International Group Limited (BD) so
that the Group now holds all voting and ownership rights. BDI is the contract party to the NIKE Africa
business having distribution rights to 30 countries in Africa.

4, In 2018 the Group further expanded its NIKE Africa business increasing its client base and reach. The
positive results for the year from this business were marginally impacted by the termination of a
significant client in 2017 which impacted revenue and profitability due to the need to clear inventory not
taken by this client.

As a result of the above, revenue increased by 21% from €86.5 million in 2017 to €105.0 million in 2018,
driven by the distribution business in Africa and additional retail stores.

As at 31% December the Group had total assets of €56.6 million and current assets exceeded current
liabilities by €12.3 mitlion.

Company results

The Company registered a profit before tax of €330,961 for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: €17,910,523). Profit before tax in 2017 included a one-off adjustment in relation to the sale of
Investments of Time International Sport Limited and Hudson International Company Limited to Hudson
Malta Plc.
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Directors’ report - continued

Results and dividends

The statements of comprehensive income are set out on page 11. The directors paid a dividend of €400,000
in 2018 but do not recommend the payment of a final dividend and propose that the balance of retained
earnings of €17,685,130 (2017: €17,937,034) be carried forward to the next financial year.

Key performance indicators

Financial key performance indicators

The Group is in expansionary mode with an emphasis on growing revenue and building an organisation
structure that can sustain significant growth with a longer-term vision for the improvement in shareholders’
value. As such the directors consistently monitor the Group’s performance in terms of revenue growth whilst
ensuring that the Group is well funded to continue growing. The main financial key performance indictors in
use are as follows:

2018 2017
Revenue growth 21% 47%
Debt to asset ratio 36.5% 27.7%
Interest cover ratio 3.5 4.1

Significant risks and uncertainties

Whilst the Group has significant operations located in stable economies, the Group also operates in
emerging markets with a lesser degree of social, political and economic stability. The Group aims to mitigate
this risk through operating solely with leading brands of international repute which place it in a better position
to weather any unexpected adverse conditions,

Future developments
As a significant operator in the retail industry, and through its distribution contract, the Group will continue

to expand its retail and wholesale operations with a focus on opening further stores retail in Malta and other
territories and establishing a new distribution centre in Malta for its Africa business.
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Directors’ report - continued
Directors
The directors of the Company who held office during the year were:

George Amato

Alfred Borg

Christopher Muscat

Kevin Grech

Ray Grech (appointed 31 July 2018)

Martin Gregory (appointed 31 July 2018)
Kevin Valenzia (appointed 21 January 2019)
Veronica Borg (resigned 21 January 2019)
Tara Borg Manche

Etienne Camenzuli

The Company’s Articles of Association do not require any directors to retire.
Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements

The directors are required by the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386) to prepare financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Parent Company as at the end of each
reporting period and of the profit or loss for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for:

e ensuring that the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU;

s selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;

« making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances;

» ensuring that the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Group and the Parent Company will continue in business as a going concern,

The directors are also responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and that comply with the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386).
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Parent Company and hence for
taking reasonabie steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements of Hudson Holdings Limited for the year ended 31 December 2018 are included
in the Annual Report 2018, which is published in hard-copy printed form and may be made available on the
Company’s website. The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Annual Report
on the website in view of their responsibility for the controls over, and the security of, the website. Access
to information published on the Company’s website is available in other countries and jurisdictions, where
legislation governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from requirements
or practice in Malta.




HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2018

Directors’ report - continued
Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution for their re-
appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the board . /

’ ri's;topher Muscat
Director

Registered officem
Hudson House
Burmarrad Road,
Burmarrad

St. Paul's Bay SPB 9060
Malta

28 June 2019
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Shareholders of Hudson Holdings Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion:

e Hudson Holdings Limited’s Group financial statements and Parent Company financial statements
(the “financial statements”) give a true and fair view of the Group and the Parent Company’s
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and of the Group’s and the Parent Company’s financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (‘1FRSs’) as adopted by the EU; and

e The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Maltese
Companies Act (Cap. 386).

What we have audited

Hudson Holdings Limited’s financial statements, set out on pages 9 to 62, comprise:

o the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2018;

o the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

o the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and
o the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements of the Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders) Directive issued in
terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281) that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Malta. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these Codes.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Hudson Holdings Limited

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’
report (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, including the directors’
report.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

With respect to the directors’ report, we also considered whether the directors’ report includes the
disclosures required by Article 177 of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Based on the work we have performed, in our opinion:

o The information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386).

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified material misstatements in the
directors’ report and other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the Maltese Companies Act
(Cap. 386), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Hudson Holdings Limited

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Hudson Holdings Limited

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

We also have responsibilities under the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386) to report to you if, in our
opinion:

e Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or that returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us.

e The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
e We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

e Certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made in the financial
statements, giving the required particulars in our report.

We have nothing to report to you in respect of these responsibilities.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
78, Mill Street

Qormi

Malta

A

Lucienne Pace Ross
Partner

28 June 2019
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Statements of financial position

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in associates

Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Available for sale investments
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current asseis

Inventories

Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Current tax assets

Total current assets

Total assets

Notes

~No gbh

=N
o @@

11
12

As at 31 December

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
1,262,557 1,257,604 - -
6,499,755 4,658,183 633,111 625,365
- - 18,764,574 18,452,771
285,062 . -
1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
- 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
- - 3,391,625 -
499,237 1,081,322 - -
394,464 448,482 33,471 -
10,441,075 9,245,591 24,322,781 20,878,136
19,386,674 19,042,576 - 90
- 45,163 - 45,163
17,888,000 12,534,292 3,152,825 3,561,357
8,906,524 6,166,287 195,185 7,811
19,272 215,701 - -

I =
46,200,470 38,004,019 3,348,010 3,614,421
56,641,545 47,249,610 27,670,791 24,492,557
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Statements of financial position - continued

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves attributable
to owners of the Company

Share capital

Share premium

Other reserve

Foreign exchange translation reserve

Fair value reserve

Retained earnings

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Current tax liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The notes on pages 17 to 62 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes

15

17
12

16
17

As at 31 December

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
85,107 85,107 85,107 85,107
873,056 873,056 873,056 873,056
272,818 1,030,920 - -
1,006,058 631,219 - -
878,738 1,122,488 878,738 1,122,488
6,476,942 6,274,958 17,685,130 17,937,034
9,692,719 10,017,748 19,522,031 20,017,685
(167,181) 388,152 - -
9,425,538 10,405,900 19,522,031 20,017,685
12,165,569 2,009,012 4,824,947 410,716
1,237,956 1,352,381 211,188 267,438
13,403,525 3,361,393 5,036,135 678,154
24,482,210 21,923,443 2,738,313 3,159,968
8,492,696 11,101,017 293,692 600,842
837,576 457,857 80,620 35,908
33,812,482 33,482,317 3,112,625 3,796,718
47,216,007 36,843,710 8,148,760 4,474,872
56,641,545 47,249,610 27,670,791 24,492,557

The financial statements on pages 9 to 62 were authorised for issue by the Board on 28 June 2019 and

C ’y{opher Muscat

were signed on its behalf by:

Difector

10



HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2018

Statements of comprehensive income

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income

Operation and administrative expenses
Income from investments in subsidiaries

Operating profit
Finance income

Finance costs

Share of loss in associate

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit attributabie to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss:

Currency translation differences on
translating foreign operations

ltems that may not be subsequentfy
reclassified fo profit or loss:

Fair value movements equity
investments, net of deferred tax

Other comprehensive income for
the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

Owners of the Campany

Non-controlling interests

Notes

1¢

19

21
22

23

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € £
18 105,028,987 86,512,920 2,791,778 2,232,748
(78,832,412) (65,724,234} {35,005} (32,842)
26,096,575 20,788,686 2,756,773 2,199,006
603,215 131,594 116,249 16,069,643
(23,341,369) (17,804,087) (2,698,199) {1,971,859)
- - 184,615 1,538,462
3,358,421 3,116,193 359,438 17,836,152
10,484 184 254,231 156,998
(966,861) (756,017} (282,708) (82,627}
(41,037) ; } ;
2,361,007 2,360,360 330,961 17,910,523
(1,380,889) (808,787} {120,705) (590,537)
980,118 1,551,573 210,256 17,319,986
1,018,246 1,663,257 210,256 17,319,986
{38,128} (11,684) - -
980,118 1,551,573 210,256 17,319,986
374,839 (749,486} - -
{243,750) 401,394 (243,750) 401,394
131,089 {348,092) {243,750) 401,394
1,111,207 1,203,481 (33,494) 17,721,380
1,149,335 1,416,478 (33,494) 17,721,380
(38,128) (212,897) - -
1,111,207 1,203,481 (33,494) 17,721,380

Year ended 31 December

The notes on pages 17 to 62 are an integral part of these financial statements.

11
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Statements of changes in equity - continued

Company Fair
Share Share value Retained
capital premium reserve earnings Total
£ € € € €

Balance at 1 January 2017 66,970 476,205 721,094 617,048 1,881,317
Comprehensive income
Profit far the year - - - 17,319,986 17,319,986
Other comprehensive income
Fair value movements, ret of
deferred tax - 401,394 - 401,394
Total comprehensive income - - 401,394 17,319,986 17,721,380
Transactions with owners
Increase in share capital 18,137 - - - 18,137
Increase in share premium - 396,851 - - 396,851
Balance at 31 December 2017 85,107 873,056 1,122,488 17,937,034 20,017,685
Balance 1 January 2018, as

previously stated 85,107 873,056 1,122,488 17,937,034 20,017,685
Impact of change in accounting

adjustment on adoption of

IFRS 9 - - {62,160) (62,160)
Restated balances as at 1
January 2018 85,107 873,056 1,122,488 17,874,874 19,955,525
Comprehensive income - - 210,256 210,256
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Fair value movements, net of

deferred tax - (243,750) - (243,750)
Transactions with owners
Dividends declared - - - (400,000} {400,000)
Balance at 31 December 2018 85,107 873,056 878,738 17,685,130 19,522,031

The notes on pages 17 to 62 are an integral part of these financial statements.

14
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Statements of cash flows

Cash flows from operating
actlivities

Gash generated from/ used in
Operations

Finance income

Income tax (paid)/ refunded

interest paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing
activitles

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible asset

Proceeds from disposal of intangible
assets

Purchase of available-for-sale financial
asset

Movement in loans and receivables

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

Investment in subsidiary

investment in associate

Net cash used in investing activities

Notes

28
21

22

5

Year ended 31 December

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
1,228,742  (2,934,104) 454,631 18,151,064
10,484 184 254,231 156,998
{808,898) (642,771) {75,993) 9,848
{966,861) {756,017) (282,708) (82,627)
(536,533) (4,332,708) 350,161 18,235,283
(3,498,805) (1,249,570) (163,228) {117,794)
- 27,350 -
(22,340) (15,276) - -
- 30,850 - -
- (105,5976) - (105,976)
45,163 65,589  (3,394,837) 90,000
- - - (18,3086,270)
- - (311,803)
(326,099) - -
(3,802,081) (1,247,033) (3,869,868) (18,440,040)

15
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Statements of cash flows - continued

Group Company
Year ended 31 December
Notes 2018 2017 2018 2017
€ 3 € €
Cash flows from financing
activities
Dividends paid (400,000) - (400,000) -
Drawdowns on borrowings 11,771,255 6,812,492 4,611,454 -
Repayments of borrowings (2,421,3386) (680,531) (119,919) (45,695)
increase in share capital - 18,137 - 18,137
Increase in share premium - 396,851 - 396,851
Net cash generated from
financing activities 8,949,919 6,546,949 4,091,535 169,293
Movement in cash and cash
equivalents 4,611,306 967,208 571,828 (35,464)
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 4,066,552 3,076,504 (376,643) (341,179)
Exchange differences on cash
balances (69,385) 22,840 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year 14 8,608,472 4,066,552 195,185 (376,643)

The notes on pages 17 to 62 are an integral part of these financial statements,
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Notes to the financial statements

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Hudson Holdings Limited
and its subsidiaries. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and the requirements of
the Maltese Companies Act (Cap 386). They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the fair valuation of the land and buildings class of property, plant and
equipment.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs as adopted by the EU requires the
use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires directors to exercise their judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies (see Note 3 — Critical accounting estimates and
judgements).

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2018

In 2018, the Group and Company adopted new standards, amendments and interprstations to
existing standards that are mandatory for the company's accounting period beginning on 1 January
2018. The adoption of these revisions required the Group and Company {0 change its accounting
policies following adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15, disclosed in notes 1.7 and 1.18. An analysis of
the impact of the adoption of these standards and the new accounting policies is disciosed below.

The other amendments to standards adopted during the year did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significant affect the current or future periods.

Changes in accounling policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and IFRS 15 ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’ on the Group and Company’s financial statements and also discloses
the new accounting policies that have been applied from 1 January 2018, where they are different to
those applied in prior periods.

(a) Impact on the financial statements

As a result of the changes in the Group and Gompany’s accounting policies and as explained in Notes
(b} and (c) below, IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 were adopted without restating comparative information. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new requirements are therefore not reflected
in the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, but are recognised in the opening
statement of financial position on 1 January 2018.

The following table shows the adjustments recognised for each individual line item. Line items that
were not affected by the changes have not been included. As a result, the sub-totais and totals
disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers provided.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.1 Basis of preparation - continued

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published sitandards effective in 2018 - continued

(8) Impact on the financial staterments — continued

The adjustments are explained in more detail by the standard below, including, as applicable,
deferred tax impacts at the rate of the applicable jurisdiction as at 1 January 2018. The adoption of
IFRS 15, although resulting in changes to accounting policies, did not impact the amounts recognised
as at 31 December 2017, nor was there any impact resulting from changes in presentation of line

items,

Statement of financial position (extract)
ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Retained earnings

Total equity

Statement of financial position {extract)
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Deferred tax asset

Current assets

Trade and other receivables

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Retained earnings

Total equity

Group
1 January 2018
Based on 31 Impact of
December 2017 - as adoption of
originally reported IFRS 9 Restated
€ € €
6,166,287 {114,359) 6,051,928
47,249,610 (114,359) 47,135,251
6,274,958 (114,359) 6,160,599
10,405,900 {114,359) 10,291,541
The Company
1 January 2018
Based on 31 Impact of
December 2017 - as adoption of
otiginally reported IFRS 9 Restated
3 € €
- 33,471 33,471
3,561,357 {95,631) 3,465,726
24,492 557 {62,160) 24,430,397
17,937,034 {62,160) 17,874,874
20,017,685 {62,160) 19,955,525
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.1 Basis of preparation - continued

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2018 - continued
(b) IFRS 9 Financiat Instruments — Impact of adoption

IFRS 9 replaces the provision of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition, classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of
financial assets and hedge accounting.

The adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1 January 2018 resulted in changes in accounting
policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The new accounting
policies are set out in Note 1.7 below. In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS 9,
comparative figures have not been restated. The total impact on the Group and Company’s retained
earnings as at 1 January 2018, arising as a result of the new impairment requirements of the
standard, as explained in (i) below, are disclosed in the tables above.

(i} Classification and measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of IFRS 9) the Group and Company's management
has assessed which business models apply to the financial assets held by the Group and Company
and has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate IFRS 9 categories.

Available-for-sale financial assets, with a carrying value of €1,800,000 as at 1 January 2018 were
reclassified to ‘equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income’. However the
measurement basis pre and post IFRS 9 adoption remained fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Loans and receivables with a carrying amount of €45,163 as at 1 January 2018 were reciassified to
‘other assets at amortised cost’. However the measurement basis pre and post IFRS 2 adoption
remained amortised cost.

(i} Impairment of financial assets

The Group and Company's financial assets that are subject to IFRS 9's new expected credit loss
model include equity investments held at fair value through other comprehensive income, trade and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents from 3" Party finance institutions. The Company
also has loans and other receivables from subsidiaries that are subject to IFRS 9's new expected
credit loss model.

The Group and Company were required to revise its impairment methodology under IFRS 9. The
impact of the change in impairment methodology on the Group and Company's equity is disclosed in
the tables in Note (a) above.,

Cash and cash egquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are within scope as of IFRS 9 impairment model. Based on the Group’s
management assessment of these balances, disclosed in more detail on note 2.1 (b), the provision
required as at 1 January is €114,359.No provision on cash and cash equivalents were required at
Company level.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.1 Basis of preparation - continued

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2018 - continued
(b) /FRS 9 Financial Instruments — Impact of adoption — continued

(i) Impairrent of financial assets - continued

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from subsidiaries are of a current nature and are within scope as of IFRS 2 impairment
model. Based on the Company’s management assessment of these balances, disclosed in more
detail on note 2.1 {b), the provision required as at 1 January is €95,631.

{c} IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers — impact of adoption

The Group and Company has adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers from 1
January 2018. There was no impact on the Group and Company’s financial statements as a result of
this adoption.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published
by the date of authorisation for issue of these financial statements but are mandatory for the
Company’s accounting periods beginning after 1 January 2019. The Group and Company have not
early adopted these revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the Company’s
directors are of the opinion that, except for the below, there are no requirements that will have a
possible significant impact on the Company’s financial statements in the period of initial application.
In the case of the Group and Company, the directors are of the opinion that there are no requirements
that will have a possible significant impact in the Group and Company’s financial statements in the
period of initial application.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective
IFRS 16’ Leases’

IFRS 16 was published in January 2016 and will be effective from 1 January 2019, replacing IAS 17
‘Leases’.

The standard mainly impacts lessee accounting as it requires lessees to recognise a lease liability
reflecting future lease payments and a 'right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts; am optional
exemption is available for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. It will result in
almost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet, as the distinction betwean operating and
finance leases is removed. The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The Group and Company has entered into long-term office leases; these arrangements were
classified as operating leases under I1AS 17. As at reporting date, the Group’s and Company’s
undiscounted operating lease commitments, which also include di rispetto period of the respective
agreements, amount to approximately €40.8m and €1.2m respectively. The Group and Company’s
management has carried out an assessment of the impact of the standard and the directors
concluded that these arrangements fail within the remits of this standard.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.1 Basis of preparation - continued

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective
IFRS 16’ Leases’ - continued

The Group and Company will apply the standard from its mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019
and will apply the simplified transition approach. As a result, the Group and Company will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to the first adoption. Under this approach, the lease liability
is measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments as at 1 January 2019, which
management has estimated to amount to €28.4m and €0.9m respectively. Right-of-use assets at
that date will be measured at an amount equivalent to this lease liability {less prepaid lease expenses
as at 1 January 2019), with no adjustment to equity.

The adoption of IFRS 16 will also result in the replacement of operating lease rental expenditure by
amortisation of the right-of-use asset and an interest cost on the lease fiability. On the basis of the
lease arrangements in place at 1 January 2019, management estimates that rental costs of €5.0m
(Group) and €0.1m (Company) respectively for the year ending 31 December 2019 wili be replaced
by a notional interest charge that is expected to be in the region of €1.4m (Group) and €43k
(Company); and an annual amortisation charge in the region of €4.4m (Group) and €72k (Company).

This will therefore result in a reduction of approximately €1.1m (Group) and €27k (Company) in
profitability for the year ending 31 December 2019 which negative impact will be reversed in
subsequent periods.

Rental payments under IFRS 16 are allocated between interest payments and a reduction in the
lease liability, with a corresponding impact on the Groups’s statement of cash flows. The Group’s
policy is to present interest payments as operating cash flows. Accordingly, the parts of the lease
payments that represent cash payments for the principal portion of the lease liabilities will be
presented as cash flows resulting from financing activities, whilst the part representing the interest
portion of the lease liabilities will be presented within cashflows from operating activities.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material
impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.2 Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control.

The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account for husiness combinations, The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair vaiue of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.  Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed (identifiable net assets)
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any nen-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired. If this
is less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss {Note 1.5).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the
cost method of accounting, i.e. at cost less impairment. Cost includes directly attributable costs of
the investment. Provisions are recorded where, in the opinion of the directors, there is an impairment
in value. Where there has been an impairment in the value of an investment, it is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the diminution is identified.

The results of subsidiaries are reflected in the Company’s separate financial statements only to the
extent of dividends receivable. On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to profit or loss.

A listing of the Group's subsidiaries is set out in Note 6.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.2 Consolidation
{b} Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. In the consolidated
financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the investee after the date on which significant influence is acquired. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated
impairment loss (see Note 7).

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or loss,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate eguals or
exceads its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to its share of the associates’ profit/(foss) in profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associaie is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value at the date when significant influence is lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as a financial asset. In addition, any amotunts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or abilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for by the
cost method of accounting, i.e. atcost less impairment. Provisions are recorded where, in the opinion
of the directors, there is an impairment in value. Where there has been an impairment in the value
of an investment, it is recognised as an expense in the period in which the diminution is identified.
The results of associates are reflected in the Company’s separate financial statements only to the
extent of dividends receivable. On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.2 Consolidation
{¢) Transactions with non-controfling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests, where the acquisition or disposal of
partial interests in a subsidiary has no impact on the Group’s ability to govern control the subsidiary’s
financial and operating policies, as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

1.3 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presemtation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency').
The consolidated financial statements are presented in euro, which is the Company’s functional and
the Group’s presentation currency.

(b} Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.

Foreigh exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the income statement within ‘other income/(charges) - net'.

(c) Group companies

Income statements of foreign entities are transiated into the Group's presentation currency at the
average exchange rates for the year and statements of financial position are translated at the
exchange rates ruling at year-end. All resulting translation differences are recoghised in other
comprehensive income.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are taken to other comprehensive income. On disposal or partial disposal of a foreign
entity, translation differences that were previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and transiated at the closing rate. Translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.4 Property, plant and eguipment

Propetty, plant and equipment, is stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
patt is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to allocate the cost, or revalued amount, of the
assets to their residual values over their estimated useful life as follows:

%

Improvement to premises 10
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 20 - 33%
Plant and Machinery 25
Motor vehicles 20

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other operating income’ in the statement of comprehensive income.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount (Note 1.6).

1.5 Intangible assets
{a) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment josses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units {or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. if the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.5 Intangible assets
{b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost. Trademarks and licences acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks and licences
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and ficences over their
estimated useful fives of 15 to 20 years.

1.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example certain intangible assets, are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amottisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to seli and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

1.7 Financial assets
Accounting policies applied subsequent to 1 January 2018
1.7.1 Ciassification

From 1 January 2018, the Group and Company classify financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

© those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or
loss), and
¢ those to be measured at amortised costs

The classification depends on the Group and Company’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit of loss or OCI,
For investments in equity instruments that are not held-for-trading, this will depend on whether the
Company has made an irrevocabie election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income {(FVOCI).

The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and onfy when its business model for managing
those assets change.

1.7.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group and Company commit to purchase or sell the assel. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cashflows from financial assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.7 Financial assets - continued
1.7.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group and Company measure a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cashflows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group and Company’s business
model for managing the asset and cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group and Company classified its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented on other gains/ (losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line items in
the statement of profit or loss.

e FVOCH Assets that are held for collection contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at FYOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses).

Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gain/ (losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate line items in the
statement of profit or loss.,

e FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost of FVOC! are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recoghised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/ {fosses) in the period in
which it arises.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.7 Financial assets - continued

1.7.3 Measurement - continued

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company's
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit
or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
statement of profit or loss as applicable.

1.7.4 Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group and Company assess on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit loss associated with debt instruments carried at amortised costs and FVOCI, The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group and Company apply the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOC}
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

The Group and Company applied IFRS 9 retrospectively but elected not to restate the comparative
information. As a result, the comparative information provided continues to be accounted for in
accordance with the Group and Company’s previous accounting policy.

Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
1.7.5 Classification
{a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goeds or services
directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the asset. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than twelve months after the end of the reporting petiod. These are classified
as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position (Note 1.9 and 1.10).

(b) Available-for-sale financial assels

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or
hot classified in any of the other categories. Investments intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time, which may be sold in response to needs for fiquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange
rates or equity prices are classified as availabie-for-sale assets. They are included in non-current
assets unless the asset matures or management intends to dispose of it within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period.
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1.7 Financial assets - continued
1.7.6 Recognition and measurement

The Group recognises a financial asset in its statement of financial position when it becomes a party
to the coniractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on settlement date, which is the date on which an asset is delivered to or by the
Group.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for
impairment. Amortised cost is the initial measurement amount adjusted for the amortisation of any
difference between the initial and maturity amounts using the effective interest method.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asseis
have been expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership or has not retained cost of the asset.

1.7.7 impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financia! asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The Group first assesses
whether objective evidence of impairment exists. The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

« significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

« abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

e it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present vaiue of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in note 1.9.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.7 Financial assets - continued

1.7.7 Impalrment - continued

(b} Assets classified as available-for-sale

For debt securities, the Company uses the criteria referred to in {a) above. In the case of equity
securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered an indicator that the securities are impaired. If objective evidence
of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment foss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss on equity instruments are
not reversed through profit or loss.

1.8 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average cost method and comprises expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

1.9 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables comprise amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less {or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets,

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment, i.e. expected credit
loss allowances. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the profit or loss within ‘administrative expenses’.
When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade and other
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
‘administrative expenses’ in profit or loss. Impairment of financial assets is described in Note 1.7.4
{2017 Note 1.7.7) above,

30




HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2018

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at face value. In the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current Habilities in the
statement of financiai position.

1.11 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

1.12 Financial liabilities

The Group recognises a financial liability in its statement of financial position when it becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group’s financial liabilities, other than derivative
contracts, are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, i.e. which are not at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or ioss are recoghised
initially at fair value, being the fair value of consideration received, net of transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or the issue of the financial liability. These financial kabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. The Group derecognises a financial liability from its
statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract or arrangement is
discharged, is cancelled or expires.

1.13 Borrowings

Borrowings are recoghised initially at the fair value of proceeds received, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the end of the reporting period. Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

1.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables comprise obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). !f not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amontised cost using the effective interest method.

1,15 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial

position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

31




HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2018

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.16 Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to ltems recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
inequity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However,
deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised, or the deferred tax liability is settfed.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabllities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

1.17 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obiigation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

1.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is recognised upon
delivery of products or performance of services, and is stated net of sales tax, returns, rebates and
discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be refiably measured, when it is
probable that future economic benetits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met
for each of the Company’s activities as described below.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.18 Revenue recognition - continued

{a) Sales of goods - wholesale

The Group sells a range of branded consumer products in the wholesale market. Sales of goods are
recognised when the Group has delivered products to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the wholesaler's acceptance of the products. Delivery does not occur until the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, and the wholesaler has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

(b) Sales of goods - retail

The Group operates a number of retail outlets for seliing branded consumer products. Sales of goods
are recognised when a group entity sells a product to the customer. Retail sales are usually in cash
or by credit card.

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised for all interest-bearing instruments, using the effective interest method,
untess collectability is in doubt.

1.19 Operating leases

(a) The company is the lessee

Leases of assets in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

1.20 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and

the Company's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities potentially expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictabifity of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The board of directors provides principles for
overall risk management, as well as policies covering risks referred to above and specific areas such
as investment of excess liquidity. The Group did not make use of derivative financial instruments to
hedge certain risk exposure ensuring the current and preceding financial years.

{a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency that is not the respective group entity's functional

currency.

The table below summarises the Group's exposure to foreign currencies, other than the functional
currency, as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Net

Assets Liabilities exposure

Group € € €
As at 31 December 2018

USD to EUR 109,606 {966,544) (856,938)

EUR to USD 1,605 (161,143) (159,538)

GBP to EUR 95,210 (396,442) {301,232)
Other currencies - -

206,421  (1,524,129) (1,317,708)

Net

Assets Liabilities exposure

Group € € €
As at 31 December 2017

USD to EUR 157,248 {307,131) {149,883)

EUR to USD 7,517 {115,186) (107,669)

GBP to EUR 28,468 (468,253) {439,785)

Other currencies 16,827 {(4,500) 12,427

210,160 (895,070) (684,910)

Based on the amounts disclosed above, the directors are of the opinion that the Group is not
significantly exposed to changes in exchange rates. Accordingly, a sensitivity analysis disclosing
how profit or loss, and other comprehensive income, would be impacted by a change in interest rates
that was reasonably possibie at the end of the reporting period, is not required.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

(a) Market risk - continued

{iy Interest rate risk

In general, the Group and Company are exposed to risk associated with the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates. The Group and Company’s main exposure to interest
rate risk arises on its borrowings (Note 17); it does not have significant interest-bearing assets. The
Group and Company's borrowings are issued at variableffixed rates and expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Management monitors the level of floating rate borrowings as a measure of

cash How risk taken on.

The exposure to cash flow interest rate risk as at 31 December is shown below:

Group Company
At floating rates
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
Interesi-beating assefs
Amounts owed by subsidiaries (Note 11) - - 3,033,835 3,443,593
Interest-bearing liabifities
Bank overdraft (Note 17) 298,052 2,099,735 111,454 384,454
Bank loans (Note 17) 7,864,778 11,010,204 507,185 627,104
Amounts owed to subsidiaries (Note 16) - - 2,145,643 967,723

8,162,830 13,110,029 2,764,282 1,879,281

Net (8,162,830) (13,110,029) 269,553 1,464,312
Group Company
At fixed rates
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €

Interest-bearing assets
Loans from subsidiaries (Note 10) - - 3,440,000 -

Interest-bearing liabifities

Listed bond {Note 17) 11,792,700 - - -
Bank loans (Note 17) 702,735 - 4,500,000 -

12,495,435 - 4,500,000 -
Net (12,495,435) - (1,0860,000) -
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
{a) Market risk - continued

(i) Interest rate risk - continued

Based on the amounts disclosed above, the directors are of the opinion that the Group and Company
are not significantly exposed to changes in interest rates. Accordingly, a sensitivity analysis
disclosing how profit or loss, and other comprehensive income, would be impacted by a change in
interest rates that was reasonably possible at the end of the repoiting period, is not required.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from credit exposures to wholesale and retail customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions, loans receivable and cash and cash equivalents. The Group
and the Company's exposures to credit risk as at the end of the reporting periods are analysed as
follows:;

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
Loans and receivables category:
Trade and other receivables ~ gross
(Note 11) 19,911,261 15,027,376 3,210,703 3,565,601
Loans and receivables (Note 9,10) - 45,163 3,440,000 45,163
Cash and cash equivalents — net of
provisions {Note 14) 8,906,524 6,166,287 195,185 7,811

28,817,785 21,238,826 6,845,888 3,618,575
Less: other receivables that do not give

rise 1o credit risk (3,863,176) (2,677,012) {106,666) (81,073)
Provision for impairment (1,524,024) (1,411,762) (57,878) (4,244)
Maximum exposure to credit risk 23,430,585 17,150,052 6,681,344 3,533,258

Trade and other receivables (including contract asseis)

The Group assesses the credit quality of its trade customers, the majority of which are unrated, taking
into account financial position, past experience and other factors. The Group's exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. It has policies in place to
ensure that sales of services are affected to customers with an appropriate credit history. Standard
credit terms are in place for individual clients, however, wherever possible, new corporate customers
are analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and service
delivery terms and conditions are offered. The creditworthiness analysis for new customers includes
a review through external creditworthiness databases when available.

The Group manages credit limits and exposures actively in a practicable manner such that past due
amounts receivable from customers are within controlled parameters.

The Group has debtor balances amounting to €7,951,054 (2017: €3,352,562) that are covered by
letters of credit. The Group does not hold any other significant collateral as security.
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Financiat risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
(b) Credit risk - conlinued

in view of the nature of the Group’s activities and the market in which it operates, a limited humber
of customers account for a certain percentage of the Group’s trade and other receivables. The largest
client exposure accounts for 40% (2017: 46%) of the trade debtor balances of which 100% (2017:
100%) are covered by letters of credit. The exposure is further covered by a credit note which has
been accrued for within these financial statements. These exposures are monitored and reported
more frequently and rigorously. These customers trade frequently with the Group and are deemed
by management, usually taking cognisance of the performance history without defaults, to have
excellent credit standing.

Impairment of trade and other receivables (including contract assets)

The Group applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles
of sales over a period of time before the reporting date and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the tenants to settle the
receivables. The Group adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.
The Group’s debtors are principally in respect of transactions with costumers for whom there is no
recent history of default. Management does not expect any material losses from non-performance
by these customers. On the basis of this analysis and considering that the Group never experienced
material defaults from its receivables, no adjustments to impairment provisions on trade receivables
were required upon adoption of IFRS 9, as the identified impairment loss is insignificant.

Credit loss allowances include specific provisions against credit impaired individual exposures with
the amount of the provisions being equivalent to the balances attributable to credit impaired
receivables. The individually credit impaired trade receivables mainly relate to independent
customers which are in unexpectedly difficuit economic situations mostly due to geopolitical issues
and which are accordingly not meeting repayment obligations. In this respect, the Company has
recognised specific impairment provisions during the current financial year, against credit impaired
individual exposures which have demonstrated objective evidence of being impaired. As at 31
December 2018, trade receivables of €1,524,024 (2017: €1,411,762) were impaired and the amount
of the provisions in this respect are equivalent to these amounts.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets are presented as net impairment losses
within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the same line item.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

{b) Credit risk - continued

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade and other receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade receivables was assessed based on the incurred loss model.
Individual receivables which were known to be uncollectible were written off by reducing the carrying
amount directly. The other receivables were assessed collectively to determine whether there was
objective evidence that an impairment had been incurred but not yet been identified. For these
receivables the estimated impairment losses were recognised in a separate provision for impairment.

The Group considered that there was evidence of impairment if any of the following indicators were
present:

e significant financial difficulties of the debtor
* probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
» default or late payments (more than 30 days overdue).

Cagh and cash equivalents

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents for Group and Company is considered negligible since
the majority of the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. The
Group and Company assessed the expected credit loss for cash and cash equivalents. The loss
allowances for these financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The identified impairment loss was insignificant except for a bank balance at a saubsidiary
for which an credit foss allowance of €112,416 (2017: €Nil) was considered.

The closing loss allowances for cash and cash equivaients as at 31 December 2018 reconcile to
the opening loss allowances as follows:

2018 2017
Group € €
Cash
Balance at 1 January - -
Amounts restated through retained earnings 114,359 -
Balance at 1 January — as restated 114,359 -
Decrease in loss allowance recognised
in profit or loss during the year {1,943) -
Balance at 31 December 112,416 -
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
(b) Credit risk - continued

Other financial asseis at amortised cost

The Company’s other financial assets at amortised cost include loans and other current receivables
due from subsidiaries, which are eliminated on consofidation (Notes 10 and t1). The Company
monitors intra-group credit exposures at individual entity level on a regular basis and ensures timely
performance of these assets in the context of its overall liquidity management.

The loss allowances for these financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company’s management uses judgement in making these assumptions,
based on the counterparty’s past history, existing market conditions, as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

As at year-end, based on the directors’ assessments of these factors, the equity position of the
respective counterparty, and, where the probability of default is high, the recovery strategies
contemplated by management and the support of shareholders in place, the resulting impairment
charge required for loans and other current receivables was of €48,375 and €53,650 respectively.

The closing loss allowances for other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31 December 2018
reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:

2018 2017
Company € €
Other financial assets at amortised cost
Balance at 1 January - -
Amounts restated through retained earnings 95,631 -
Balance at 1 January — as restated 95,631 -
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss
during the year 6,394 -
Balance at 31 December 102,025 -
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2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
{c) Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in relation to meeting future obligations associated with its
financial liabilities, which comprise interest-bearing borrowings (Note 17) and trade and other
payables (Note 16). Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and
committed credit lines to ensure the availability of an adequate amount of funding to meet the
Company’s obligations.

Management monitors liquidity risk by means of cash flow forecasts which are updated on a regular
basis. The Group’s liquidity risk is not deemed to be material in view of the matching of cash inflows
and outflows arising from operations.

The table below analyses the Group and Company’s principal financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining term at the end of the reporting period fo the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Due
Carrying | Contractual between 2  after more
amount | cashiflows within1year and5vyears thans years
€ € € € €
Group
31 December 2018
Listed bond 11,792,700 | 16,176,000 552,000 2,088,000 13,566,000
Other bank loans and
facilities 8,567,513 9,098,640 8,660,582 438,058 -
Bank overdraft 298,052 298,052 298,052 - -
Trade and other payables 24,482,210 | 24,482,210 24,482,210 - -
Total 45,140,475 | 50,054,902 33,992,844 2,526,058 1 3,566,000
31 December 2017
Bank overdraft 2,099,735 2,099,735 2,099,735 - -
Trade and other payables 21,923,443 | 21,923443 21 923,443 - -
Bank and other loans 11,010,294 | 11,010,294 9,001,282 1,788,452 220,560
Total 35,033,472 | 35,033,472 33,024,460 1,788,452 220,560
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2.

Financia! risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

(c} Liguidity risk - continued

Due
Carrying Contractual between 2  after more
amount  cash flows within 1 year and 5 years than 5 years
€ € € € €
Company
31 December 2018
L oan from subsidiary 4,500,000 6,320,390 247,500 2,602,670 3,470,220
Bank and other loans 507,185 542,278 217,512 324,766 -
Bank overdraft 111,454 111,454 111,454 -

Trade and other payables 2,738,313 2,738,313 2,738,313 - -

Total 7,856,952 9,712,435 3,314,779 2,927,436 3,470,220

31 December 2017
Bank and other loans 627,104 676,581 247,613 428,978 -
Bank overdraft 384,454 384,454 384,454 - -
Trade and other payables 3,159,968 3,159,968 3,159,968 - -

Total 4,171,526 4,221,013 3,792,035 428,978 -

2.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may issue new shares or adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders.

The Group’s equity, as disclosed in the statement of financial position, constitutes its capital. The
Group maintains the level of capital by reference to its financial obligations and commitments arising
from operations and requirements. In view of the nature of the Group’s activities and the extent of
borrowings or debt, the capital level as at the end of the reporting period is deemed adequate by the
directors.

2.3 Fair values of financial instruments

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as foliows:

+ Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1}.

« Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

« Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) {level 3}.
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Financial risk management - continued
2.3 Fair values of financial instruments - continued

Group and Company

Level 3
€
31 December 2017
Asseis
Available-for-sale financial investment:
Equity securities
Unlisted 1,800,000
31 December 2018
Assets
Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Equity securities
Unlisted 1,500,000

It one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. The Group and Company's instrument included in level 3 comprises a private
equity investment, disclosed in Note 8 of these financial statements, which also includes a
reconciliation from opening to closing value of the instrument.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017 the carrying amounts of cash at bank, loans and receivables,
receivables, payables, and borrowings reflected in the financial statements are reasonable estimates
of fair value.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other
factors including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

In the opinion of the directors, the accounting estimates and judgements made in the course of
preparing these financial statements are not difficult, subjective or complex to a degree which would
warrant their description as critical in terms of the requirements of IAS 1.
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4. Intangible assets
Group Goodwill Others Total
£ € €
At 1 January 2017
Cost 1,065,688 250,012 1,315,700
Accumulated amortisation - (37,648) (37,648)
Net book amount 1,065,688 212,364 1,278,052
Year ended 31 December 2017
Opening net book amount 1,065,688 212,364 1,278,052
Additions - 15,276 15,276
Amortisation charge - (10,414) (10,414)
Disposals - {30,850) (30,850)
Amortisation released on disposal - 5,540 5,540
Closing net book amount 1,065,688 191,916 1,257,604
At 31 December 2017
Cost 1,065,688 234,438 1,300,126
Accumulated amortisation - (42,5622) {42,522)
Net book amount 1,065,688 191,916 1,257,604
Year ended 31 December 2018
Opening net book amount 1,065,688 191,916 1,257,604
Additions - 22,340 22,340
Amortisation charges - {13,857) (13,857)
Disposals - {9,019) (9,019)
Amortisation released on disposal - 5,489 5,489
Closing net book amount 1,065,688 196,869 1,262,557
At 31 December 2018
Cost 1,065,688 247,759 1,313,447
Accumulated amottisation - {50,890) {50,890)
Net book amount 1,065,688 196,869 1,262,557
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Property, plant and equipment

Group

At 1 January 2017
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2017
Opening net book amount
Additions

Dispesals

Currency transiation differences
Deprecation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2017
Cost
Accumutated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2018
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals

Currency translation differences

Depreciation released on disposals

Deprecation charge
Closing net book amount
At 31 December 2018

Cost
Accumuiated depreciation

Net book amount

Furniture,
fixtures
Improvemenis Motor  and other
to premises vehicles equipment Total
3 € € £
1,546,774 134,916 6,378,280 8,059,970
(606,535) (86,595) (2,796,630) (3,489,760)
940,239 48,321 3,581,650 4,570,210
940,239 48,321 3,581,650 4,570,210
294,928 45,573 909,069 1,249,570
(21,134) (11,523) - {(32,657)
- (204) 17,347 17,143
{177,678) (22,422) (945,983}  (1,146,083)
1,036,355 59,745 3,562,083 4,658,183
1,820,568 168,762 7,304,696 9,294,026
(784,213) {(109,017) (3,742,613} (4,635,843)
1,036,355 59,745 3,662,083 4,658,183
1,036,355 59,745 3,562,083 4,658,183
1,528,945 1,088 1,968,772 3,498,805
(87,911) (3,144) (266,813) {357,868)
1,013 494 (68) 1,439
38,634 - 92,319 130,953
(244,411) (21,458) (1,165,888) (1,431,757)
2,272,625 36,725 4,190,405 6,499,755
3,262,615 167,200 8,006,587 12,436,402
{989,990) (130,475) (4,816,182) (5,936,647)
2,272,625 36,725 4,190,405 6,499,755
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5. Property, plant and equipment - continued

Company Furniture,
fixiures
improvements Motor  and other
{o premises vehicles equipment Total
3 € € €
At 1 January 2017
Cost 21,437 4,294 853,353 879,084
Accumutated depreciation (2,167) {2,315) (237,101) {241,583)
Net book amount 19,270 1,979 616,252 637,501
Year ended 31 December 2017
Opening net book amount 19,270 1,979 616,252 637,501
Additions 1,079 11,890 104,825 117,794
Deprecation charge {2,198) (2,492) (125,240) {129,930)
Closing net book amount 18,151 11,377 595,837 625,365
At 31 December 2017
Cost 22,516 16,184 958,178 996,878
Accumutated depreciation (4,365) {4,807) (362,341) {371,513)
Net book amount 18,151 11,377 595,837 625,365
Year ended 31 December 2018
Cpening net book amount 18,151 11,377 595,837 625,365
Additions - - 163,228 163,228
Deprecation charge (2,252} (3,237) (149,933) {155,482)
Closing net book amount 15,899 8,140 609,072 633,111
At 31 December 2018
Cost 22,516 16,184 1,121,406 1,160,106
Accumulated depreciation (6,617) (8,044) (512,334) {526,995)
Net book amount 15,899 8,140 609,072 633,111
6. Investment in subsidiaries
Company
2018 2017
€ 3
Year ended 31 December
At beginning of year 18,452,771 146,501
Additions 311,803 18,451,301
Disposals - (145,031)
At end of year 18,764,574 18,452,771

During 2018, the Group acquired the remaining 50% ownership interest in BD International Group
Limited (Malta) for a consideration of €1,577,210.
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8. Investments in subsidiaries - continued

The principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are shown below. Unless ot

herwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of ordinary

shares.
Ownership Ownership Ownership
Voting rights held interest held directiy interest held interest held by non-
Subsidiaries Registered office by the Group by the Company by the Group controlling interests
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Time International (Sport) Limited Hudson House, 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - -
Burmarrad Road, Burmarrad
St Paul's Bay, Maita
Italian Operations Limited SRL Via Vincenzo Romaniello, 99.00% 99.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - -
21/B, 80129
Napoli, ltaly
ftalian Operations Limited Via Vincenzo Romaniello, 99.00% 99.00% - - 100.00% 100.00% - -
Hetail SKL 21/B, 80129
Napoli, Haly
UdJ International Co Limited Hudson House, 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - -
Burmarrad Road, Burmarrad
St Paul's Bay, Malta
Urban Jungle Sneakers SL. 21 C/Velazquez 100.00% 100.00% - - 100.00% 100.00% - -

Madrid
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8.

Investments in subsidiaries - continued

Ownership Ownership Ownership
Voting rights heid interest held directly interest held interest held by non-
Subsidiaries Registered office by the Group by the Company by the Group controlling interests
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
BD Morocco SARL 7, Rue El Messoudi 100.00% 100.00% - 100.00% 100.00% - -
Quartier Racine
Casablanca
Sports Alliance Limited P.O. Box 3175, 100.00% 100.00% - 100.00% 100.00% - -
Road Town, Tortola
British Virgin Islands
Hudson international Company Hudson House, 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - -
Limited Burmarrad Road, Burmarrad
St Paul's Bay, Malta
Hudson Libya Utilities Gergaresh Street, 65.00% 65.00% - - 65.00% 65.00% 35.00% 35.00%
Management and Operation Tripoli, Libya
Services Joint Venture SC
Company
Hudson Malta Plc Hudson House, 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - -
Burmarrad Road, Burmarrad
St Paul's Bay, Malta
Hudson ltalia SAL. Milano Via Monte Rosa 91 100.00%  100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - -

CAP 20149, ltaly
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7.

8.

Investment in associates

Group
2018 2017
€ €
Year ended 31 December
At beginning of year - -
Additions 326,099 -
Share of loss for the year {41,037)
At end of year 285,062 -

Associate

Premium Brands SARL 29 rue des Pins Investments Park 2,

Registered office

Percentage of shares directly
held by the Group

2018
%

43.56

2017
%o

160356, Hydra, Algeria

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (2017: Avaitable-for-
sale financial investments)

Group and Company

2018 2017
€ €

Year ended 31 December
As at 1 January 1,800,000 1,200,000
Additions - 105,976
Fair value movements (300,000) 494,024
As at 31 December 1,500,000 1,800,000

Group and Company

2018 2017
€ €

As at 31 December
Cost 418,476 418,476
Fair value 1,081,524 1,381,524
1,500,000 1,800,000

Following the adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, ‘available-for-sale financial assets’ with a
carrying amount of €1,800,000, were reclassified to ‘Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income’.

The Group’s equity investments, as at 31 December 2018, consists of equity instruments in an
unlisted foreign private company, GRP 3ina SL, which is fair valued annually. Fair value is estimated
by reference to recent transactions. Accordingly, the available-for-sale investment is categorised as
Level 3 within the fair value measurement hierarchy required by IFRS 13. The change in the fair
value of the investment is recognised in other comprehensive income in a fair value reserve.
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9. Loans and receivables

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € £
Current
Loans to related parties - 45,163 - 45163
- 45,163 - 45,163

Amounts owed by related parties are unsecured, bear interest at 4.95% and repayable on demand.

10. Financial asseis at amortised cost

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
Current
Loans receivable from subsidiaries - - 3,440,000 -
Less: credit loss allowance in line with
IFRS 9 - - {48,375) -
- - 3,391,625 -

Following the adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, ‘loans and receivables’ with a carrying amount
of €45,163, were reclassified to 'Financial assets at amortised cost'.

Loans receivable from subsidiaries bear interest at 5.5% and are repayable by 2026,
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1.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables

Less: Provisions for impairment

Trade receivables - net
Other receivables

Amount owed by subsidiaries — net of

provisions
Indirect tax recoverabie
Prepayments

Current
Non-current

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
14,040,514 11,253,326 8,879 19,397
(1,524,024) (1,411,762) (4,228) (4,244)
12,516,490 0,841,564 4,651 15,153
2,007,571 1,097,038 7,673 21,5638
- - 3,033,835 3,443,593
1,990,108 1,008,795 - -
1,873,068 1,668,217 106,666 81,073
18,387,237 13,615,614 3,152,825 3,561,357
17,888,000 12,534,292 3,152,825 3,561,357
499,237 1,081,322 - -

The amounts owed by subsidiaries are unsecured, repayable on demand and subject to interest at

4.85% - 5.35%.

Amounts owed by subsidiaries are stated at net of a provision of €53,650 in line with the expected
credit loss model following the adoption of IFRS 8 on 1 January 2018.
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12,

Deferred tax liability/(asset)

Deferred taxes are calculated on temporary differences under the liability method and are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The principal tax rate used is 35% (2017: 35%].

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

At beginning of year

Impact of adoption of IFRS 9

Charged/(credited) to statement of
comprehensive income (Note 23)

Currency translation differences

Directly in other comprehensive income

At end of year

The balance at 31 December represents:

Temporary difference arising on
of property, plant and equipment

Temporary differences arising on
impairment of receivables

Temporary differences arising on
foreign income

Temporary differences arising on
unutilised tax losses

Temporary differences arising due
other timing differences

Temporary differences arising on
fair value movements

Deferred tax liability

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
903,899 765,464 267,438 172,402
- - (33,471) -
(197) 55,805 - 2,406
(3,960) - -
(566,250) 92,630 (56,250) 92,630
843,492 903,899 177,717 267,438
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
(240,022) (163,225) 9,887 9,887
{74,485) (171,985) {34,956) (1,485)
972,846 1,084,943 - -
- {66,930) - -
(17.633) (47,940) - -
202,786 259,036 202,786 259,036
843,492 903,899 177,717 267,438
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12, Deferred tax liability/(asset) - continued

The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled principally
after more than twelve months. The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£ € € €
Deferred tax assets (394,464) (448,482) (33,471) -
Deferred tax liabilities _ 1,237,956 1,352,381 211,188 267,438
Deferred tax Hability 843,392 903,899 177,717 267,438
i13. Inveniories
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € 3
Goods held for resale 19,386,674 19,042,576 - 90
14. Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£ 3 € €
Cash at bank and in hand — net of 8,906,524 6,166,287 195,185 7.811
provisions
Bank overdrafts (Note 17) (298,052) (2,099,735) (111,454) (384,454)
8,608,472 4,066,552 83,731 (376,643)

Cash at bank is stated at net of a provision of £112,416 (2017: €Nil) in line with the expected credit
loss model following the adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018.
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15. Share capital and reserves

The authorised and issued share capital as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

Company
2018 2017
€ €
Authorised

18,341 ordinary ‘A’ shares of €2.329373 each 42723 42,723
4,546 ordinary 'B’ shares of €2,329373 each 10,590 10,590
4,548 ordinary ‘C’ shares of £€2.329373 each 10,530 10,590
4,546 ordinary 'D’ shares of £2.329373 each 10,590 10,580
3,205 ordinary 'E' shares of €2,329373 each 7,465 7,465
1,352 ordinary ‘F' shares of €2.329373 each 3,149 3,149
85,107 85,107

Issued and fully paid
18,341 ordinary ‘A’ shares of €2.329373 each 42,723 42,723
4,546 ordinary ‘B’ shares of €2.329373 each 10,590 10,590
4,546 ordinary 'C’ shares of €2.329373 each 10,580 10,590
4,548 ordinary ‘D’ shares of €2.329373 each 10,590 10,590
3,205 ordinary ‘E’ shares of €2.329373 each 7,465 7,465
1,352 ordinary ‘F’ shares of €2.329373 each 3,149 3,149
85,107 85,107

The holders of the ordinary A, B, C, D, E, and F shares rank ‘pari passu’ in all respects except for
voting rights for appointment of directors. The holders of ordinary shares A have a right to appoint
five directors, holders of ordinary shares B, C, D, and E have a right to appoint one director each and
holders of ordinary shares F are not entitled to appoint a director.

The foreign exchange translation reserve represents the effect of translation into the Group’s
presentation currency of the financial performance and position of those entities whose functional
currency is not the euro.
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16.

17.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Amounts owed to subsidiaries

Amounts owed to related
undertakings

Amounts owed to shareholders

Indirect faxation and other payables

Accruals

Non-current portion
Current portion

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € £ £
19,126,718 16,956,067 102,357 806,969
- - 2,145,643 967,723
3,853 3,853 - -
254,403 221,051 254,403 221,051
2,612,861 3,198,826 145,243 227,618
2,484,375 1,543,546 90,667 1,136,607
24,482,210 21,923,443 2,738,313 3,159,968
24,482,210 21,923,443 2,738,313 3,159,968

Amounts owed to group and related undertakings are unsecured, repayabie on demand and subject
to interest at 4.85%- 5.35% (2017: 4.85% - 5.35%).

Amounts owed to shareholders are unsecured and interest-free. These amounts have no fixed date
for repayment and the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of these amounts for at

least twelve months after the date of the statement of financial position.

Borrowings

Current

Bank overdralis

Bank loans and other facililies
Loan from related party

Total current
Non-current
Loan from subsidiary

Listed bond
Bank loans

Total non-current

Total borrowings

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ 3 € €
298,052 2,099,735 111,454 384,454
8,194,644 8,917,942 182,238 216,388
- 83,340 - -
8,492,696 11,101,017 293,692 600,842
- - 4,500,000 -
11,792,700 - - -
372,869 2,009,012 324,947 410,716
12,165,569 2,009,012 4,824,947 410,716
20,658,265 13,110,029 5,118,639 1,011,558

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair value.
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7.

18.

Borrowings - continued

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
Within one yaar 8,492,696 11,101,017 293,692 600,842
Between 1 and 2 years 230,160 846,340 182,238 160,176
Between 2 and 5 years 142,709 942,112 142,709 250,540
Over 5 years 11,792,700 220,560 4,500,000 -
20,658,265 13,110,029 5,118,639 1,011,558

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company had a total maxirmum general banking
facility limit of €36.4 miflion (2017: €46.1 million) and €2,057,187 (2017: €1 ,193,850) respectively.

The Bond of €12,000,000 is repayable by 2026, bears interest at 4.35%, payable annualily in arrears
on 6 April of each year and is stated at net of unamortised bond issue costs of £€207,300.

Loan from subsidiary bear interest at 5.5%, is unsecured, and is repayable by 2026,

The Group is charged interest on bank loans and other facilities at the rate of 4.50% - 4.95% per
annum (2017: 2.35% - 5.35% per annum). The Company's overdraft facilities and bank loans bear
interest at the rate of 4.95% (2017: 5.00%). These facilities are secured by a first special hypothec
over the Group and the Company's assets.

Revenue
Revenue represents the amounts receivable for goods sold and services rendered during the year,

net of any indirect taxes. The following amounts have been included in the income statement line for
the reporting period presented:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
Retail 40,687,410 29,832,678 - .
Wholesale 64,341,677 56,680,241 - -
Management fees - - 2,791,778 2,232,748
105,028,987 86,512,920 2,791,778 2,232,748
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19. Expenses by nature

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ £ € €
Purchases of goods for resale 74,530,251 61,053,183 - 32,842
Write down in inventory value 984,289 1,677,491 - -
Commissions payable 449,410 416,318 - -
Royalties 1,662,785 1,477,061 - -
Other direct expenses 1,405,677 1,100,181 - -
Employee benefit expense (Note 20) 9,236,135 7,397,232 1,699,440 1,234,112
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 4) 13,857 10,414 - -
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment {Note 5) 1,431,757 1,146,083 155,482 129,930
Rent 5,862,977 4,192,086 89,162 94,779
Legal and professional fees 775,653 520,985 127,702 40,234
Increase/(decrease} in provision
for bad debts 112,262 {136,240) - (576)
Movement in provision for intercompany
receivables - - 6,394 -
Movement in provision for bank balances {1,943} - - -
Bad debts written off - - - -
Bank charges 912,576 875,700 6,942 4,196
Advertising 1,776,286 1,554,739 35,265 5,465
Other expenses 3,221,809 2,243,088 612,817 463,719
Total cost of sales, operation and
administrative expenses 102,273,781 83,528,321 2,733,204 2,004,701
Auditor’'s fees
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2018
€ € € €
Annual statutory audit 70,000 57,000 2,050 2,000
Non-audit fees 839 2,110 7,873 750
70,839 59,110 9,923 2,750
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20. Employee benefit expense

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
Wages and salaries 8,459,963 6,826,940 1,594,868 1,627,855
Social security costs 776,172 570,292 104,572 90,626

9,236,135 7,397,232 1,699,440 1,618,481

Recharged to group undertakings - - - (384,369)

9,236,135 7,397,232 1,699,440 1,234,112

The average number of persons employed during the year, including executive directors was made

up as follows:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
Administration and finance 48 50 3 36
Operations 106 108 23 29
Retail 390 346 - -
544 502 54 85

21.  Finance income

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €

Interest income on amounts due

by third parties 10,484 184 - -
Interest income on amounts due

by subsidiaries and group

undertakings - - 254,231 156,998

10,484 184 254,231 156,908
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22.

23.

Finance costs

Interest onh bank overdrafts and loans

Interest on amounts owed to subsidiaries

Tax expense

Current tax expense
Deferred tax (credit)/charge (Note 10)

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € £ €
966,861 756,017 37,289 56,444
- - 245,419 26,183
966,861 756,017 282,708 82,627
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
1,381,086 752,982 120,705 588,131
(197) 55,805 - 2,406
1,380,889 808,787 120,705 590,537

The tax on the profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic

tax rate as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at 35%

Tax effect of:

Difference in tax rates

Income subject to tax at reduced rates

income not subject to tax

Unrecognised deferred tax

Expenses not aliowable for tax
purposes

Other

Tax expense

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

€ € € €

2,361,007 2,360,360 330,961 17,910,523

826,351 826,126 115,836 6,268,683
382,090 (27,824) - -
(2,170) ) - -
625 {88,353) - (5,683,994)

35,001 - - -

137,625 110,008 4,868 2,482

1,367 (11,166) - 3,366

1,380,889 808,787 120,705 590,537
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24,

25.

26.

Dividends

Group and Company
2018 2017
€ €
Dividends paid on ordinary shares - net 400,000 -
Dividends per share 10.948 -
Directors’ emolumentis
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
Salaries and other emoluments 933,974 620,243 913,974 520,438
933,974 620,243 913,974 520,438
Cash generated/{used in) from operating activities
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
€ € € €
Operating profit 3,358,421 3,116,193 359,438 17,297,690
Adjustments for:
Amortisation (Note 4) 13,857 10,414 - -
Depreciation (Note 5) 1,431,757 1,146,083 156,482 129,930
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (Note 5) 230,445 - - -
Other income (1,577,210) “ - -
Movement in impairment of provision
on receivables 112,262 (136,240) 6,394 576
Movement in provision of bank balances  (114,359) - - -
Changes in working capital:
inventories (344,098) (3,219,970) 90 100
Trade and other receivables (4,441,100) (2,350,695) 354,882  (1,138,730)
Trade and other payables 2,668,767  (1,499,889) {421,655) 1,861,498
Other - - -
Cash generated from/(used in)
operations 1,228,742  (2,034,104) 454,631 18,151,064
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27.

28.

Commitments

Operating lease commitments - as lessee

The Group and Company lease various retail outlets, offices and warehouses under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The majority of lease agreements are renewable at the end of the lease

period at market rate.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

2018 2017 2018 2017

€ € €

No later than 1 year 4,602,450 3,629,478 87,856 115,500
Later than 1 year & no [ater than 5 years 14,099,493 12,491,849 367,310 517,447
Later than 5 years 15,462,199 2672222 - -

34,164,142 18,793,649 455,167 632,947

Related party transactions
Group

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into various transactions with related parties.
Related parties are defined as those that have an ability to control or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operational decisions. These include directors and
shareholders who hold a substantiai amount of the votes able to be cast at general meetings.

The directors of all subsidiaries are considered as key management personnel. The following
represents compensation to the directors of the Company and of all subsidiaries:

2018 2017
€ €

Key management compensation
Salaries and emoluments 933,974 620,243
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Related party transactions - continued
Company
All companies forming part of the Hudson Group are considered by the directors to be related parties.

The following transactions were carried out by the Company with related parties:

2018 2017
€ €
Revenue
Revenue - subsidiaries 2,791,778 2,232,748
Expenses
Administrative expenses - key management personnel 913,974 520,438

Key management personnel compensation consisting of directors’ remuneration is disclosed in Note
25 to these financial statements.

Year end balances owed by/to related parties are disclosed separately in Notes 9, 10, 11, 16 and 17
to these financial statements.
Statutory information

Hudson Holdings Limited is a limited liability company and is incorporated in Malta, with its registered
address at Hudson House, Burmairad Road, Burmarrad, St. Paul's Bay, Malta.

62




